Haringey Council

Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel

MONDAY, 10TH DECEMBER, 2012 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, LONDON N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adamou (Chair), Mallett, Stennett, Erskine and Winskill

CO-OPTEES: Helena Kania (LINk), Claire Andrews (HFOP)

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will
be dealt with at item 8 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered:

i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, and

ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw from
the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Member's Register of Interests or the subject of a pending
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Member’s Code of Conduct.



4, DRAFT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN (PAGES 1 - 52)

To consider and comment upon the Draft Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan
2013-2016 as follows:

Cabinet Member Introduction;

Review of Budget proposals from the draft MTFP;
Consideration of identified area(s);

Conclusions and recommendations.

O

5. MINUTES (PAGES 53 - 72)

To approve minutes of the meeting held on 27" September 2012 and the Special
meeting held on 13" November 2012.

6. PANEL FORWARD PLAN (PAGES 73 -74)
7. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

10" January 2013, 18:30
2" April 2013, 18:30

8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at item 2 above

David McNulty Melanie Ponomarenko
Head of Local Democracy Senior Policy Officer
and Member Services Level 7

Level 5 River Park House
River Park House 225 High Road

225 High Road Wood Green

Wood Green London N22 8HQ

London N22 8HQ
Tel: 0208 489 2933
Email:
Melanie.Ponomarenko@Haringey.gov.uk

Monday, 03 December 2012



Page 1 Ag

Haringey Council

Cover for: Overview and Scrutiny Committee/Communities Scrutiny
Panel/Environment and Health Scrutiny Panel/Adults and
Health Scrutiny Panel/Children and Young People Scrutiny
Panel

Title: Scrutiny of the Draft Medium Term Financial Plan

Communities Scrutiny Panel & Children and Young
Officer Support: People Scrutiny Panel:

Rob Mack

Senior Policy Officer, 0208 489 2921
Rob.Mack@Haringey.gov.uk

Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel & Overview
and Scrutiny Committee:

Martin Bradford

Senior Policy Officer, 0208 489 6950
Martin.Bradford@Haringey.gov.uk

Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel & Overview and
Scrutiny Panel:

Melanie Ponomarenko

Senior Policy Officer, 0208 489 2933
Melanie.Ponomarenko@Haringey.gov.uk

Date: December 2012

1. Haringey Constitution

e As laid out in Part 4, Section G of the Haringey Constitution, the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee shall undertake scrutiny of the Council’s budget through a
Budget Scrutiny process. The procedure by which this operates is detailed in the
Protocol covering the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

e Also laid out in this section is that the Chair of the Budget Scrutiny Review
process will be drawn from among the opposition party Councillors sitting on the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall
not be able to change the appointed Chair unless there is a vote of no confidence
as outlined in Article 6.5 of the Constitution.

2. Overview and Scrutiny Protocol

e The Overview and Scrutiny Protocol lays out the process of Budget Scrutiny and
includes the following points:



The budget shall be scrtpﬁﬁg by each Scrutiny Review Panel, in their
respective areas. Their reports shall go to the OSC for approval. The
areas of the budget which are not covered by the Scrutiny Review Panels
shall be considered by the main OSC.

A lead OSC member from the largest opposition group shall be
responsible for the co-ordination of the Budget Scrutiny process and
recommendations made by respective Scrutiny Review Panels relating to
the budget.

Overseen by the lead member referred to in paragraph 9.2, each Scrutiny
Review Panel shall hold a meeting following the release of the December
Cabinet report on the new 3-year Medium Term Financial Plan. Each
Panel shall consider the proposals in this report, for their respective areas.
The Scrutiny Review Panels may request that the Cabinet Member for
Finance and Sustainability and/or Senior Officers attend these meetings to
answer questions.

Each Scrutiny Review Panel shall submit their final budget scrutiny report
to the OSC meeting in January containing their
recommendations/proposal in respect of the budget for ratification by the
OSC.

The recommendations from the Budget Scrutiny process, ratified by the
OSC, shall be fed back to Cabinet. As part of the budget setting process,
the Cabinet will clearly set out its response to the recommendations/
proposals made by the OSC in relation to the budget.

3. Budget Scrutiny & Haringey Council Plan
e Scrutiny Members should consider the savings and investments as outlined in
the Draft Medium Term Financial Plan taking into account the agreed key
priorities of the Council. The agreed key priorities as stated in the Council Plan
2012-2014 are:

PN

5.

Work with local businesses to create jobs

Deliver regeneration to key areas of the borough
Tackle the housing challenges

Improve school standards and outcomes for young
people

Deliver responsive, high quality services to residents

e Other areas outlined in the Council Plan as major responsibilities include:

o Community Safety

o Environment

o Health and Social Care

o Resident Empowerment and Social Inclusion

e On consideration of the Draft MTFP Scrutiny Members should make
recommendations to be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for
approval, prior to approval and referral to Cabinet for consideration.

4. Timetable



Pa_gp 3

consideration at 18/12
Cabinet meeting

Date Body “Activity Comment
26™ November | OSC Budget Scrutiny
Training
30" November | Cabinet MTFP published for

Housing Scrutiny
Panel

3" December Communities Budget scrutiny
Scrutiny Panel
4" December | Environmentand | Budget scrutiny

10" December

Adults and Health
Scrutiny Panel

Budget scrutiny

11" December

Children and
Young People
Scrutiny Panel

Budget scrutiny

Draft recommendations
which come out of these
Panel meetings need to
go to OSC on 17"
December in their draft
form to enable Cabinet
Member for Finance to
consider at earliest
possible stage.

17" December | OSC Budget scrutiny Budget Scrutiny of
areas which OSC is
responsible
AND
Consideration of draft
panel recommendations

18" December | Cabinet MTFP

14" January 0SC Budget Scrutiny (report

and recommendations)
published

22" January | OSC Budget Scrutiny report

approval and referral

12" February | Cabinet Final MTFP

Budget scrutiny
recommendations

5. Areas covered by each Scrutiny body
e Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Panels are asked to consider the draft
MTFP in relation to the areas which their OSC/panels cover, as agreed by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in July 2012.

e These areas are:

Scrutiny body

Policy service /areas covered |Reference in Appendices of Draft

MTFP

Overview and
Scrutiny
Commiittee

Chair:

Clir Rice

= Corporate Policy &

Strategy

Council Budget
Council performance
Corporate property
IT

Customer Services
Benefits

Legal services
Regeneration
Employment/worklessness
Voluntary sector

Appendix 1
Appendix 2 — Savings proposals for

consideration

e Front sheet

e Lines:

A13

P1-P2

E1-E7

R1-R15

Appendix 3 — Investment proposals for

consideration

e Front sheet




Community cohe®gge 4
Tottenham Regeneration

Project
St Ann’s redevelopment
Partnership arrangements

e Lines:
E1
Appendix 4 — Amendments to pre-

agreed Savings

e Lines:

Corporate resources 1-4

Chief Executives 1-3

Place and Sustainability 1 & 3

Appendix 5 — Housing Revenue Account

2013 to 2015
Appendix 6 — Draft Haringey Council

Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2015/16

e Lines:
11-12

60-62
Adults and = Adult social care Appendix 1
Health = Public Health Appendix 2 — Savings proposals for
= Link with CCG consideration
Chair: = Health and Wellbeing e Front sheet
Board e Lines:
Cllr Adamou = Adult health services A1-A12
= Children’s health services |A14-A17
* Transition Appendix 3 — Investment proposals for
= Changes to service consideration
provision e Front sheet
e Lines:
A1-A2
Appendix 4 — Amendments to pre-
agreed Savings
e None
Appendix 5
e N/A
Appendix 6 — Draft Haringey Council
Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2015/16
e Lines
57
Children and = Looked after Children Appendix 1
Young People » Fostering and adoption Appendix 2 — Savings proposals for
= Education e.g. exam consideration
Chair: results & school e Front sheet
improvements e Lines: C1-C9
Clir Newton * Youth offending Appendix 3 — Investment proposals for
= Safeguarding consideration
= Child poverty e Front sheet
= Effectiveness of

partnership working

e None
Appendix 4 — Amendments to pre-

agreed Savings

e Lines:

None

Appendix 5

e N/A

Appendix 6 — Draft Haringey Council

Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2015/16

e Lines:
22-39

Environment

Carbon reduction
Recycling and waste

Appendix 1

Appendix 2 — Savings proposals for




And Housing management Page 5 |consideration
= Highways e Front sheet
Chair: = Sustainable transport e Lines:
Clir McNamara = Parking A18-A24
= Parks and Open spaces P3-P5
= Planning & Licensing P11
= Enforcement P13-P17
= Strategic housing policy,  |Appendix 3 — Investment proposals for
social housing, housing consideration
allocations. e Front sheet
e Lines:
A3
P1
Appendix 4 — Amendments to pre-
agreed Savings
e Lines:
Place and Sustainability 2
Appendix 5 — Housing Revenue Account
2013 to 2015
Appendix 6 — Draft Haringey Council
Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2015/16
e Lines
1-10
13-21
40-41
42-56
58-59
Communities = Crime and disorder Appendix 1
= Libraries Appendix 2 — Savings proposals for
Chair: = Culture consideration
o = Leisure e Front sheet
Clir Winskill n Equa]ities o Lines:
= Domestic violence P6-P10
= Area Forums and P12

Committees

Appendix 3 — Investment proposals for

consideration

e Front sheet
e Lines: None

Appendix 5
N/A
Appendix 6 — Draft Haringey Council

Capital Programme 2013/14 to 2015/16

None




Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

. . Item
Report for: Cabinet Number-
Title: Financial Planning 2013/14 to 2015/16
Report

Authorised by:

Julie Parker — Director of Corporate Resources

Lead Officer: Kevin Bartle — Assistant Director of Finance

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key decisions




Page 8
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To set out the strategic financial issues for the three year planning period to 2015/16, and to
propose a process for setting the Council’'s 2013/14 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) to 2015/16.

2 Introduction by Cabinet Member for Finance and Carbon Reduction — Councillor Joe
Goldberg

21 TBA

3 Recommendations (Note these recommendations will need to be refined prior to
publication at Cabinet on 18" December)

3.1 Cabinet is recommended to:

a) Note the currently known changes to Local Government Finance set out in Section
7, and the associated modelling assumptions.

b) Note that the assumptions will be refined after the provisional Local Government
Finance Settlement is published in late December.

c) For financial planning purposes only at this stage, agree the inclusion of the rent
increases discussed in Appendix 5.

d) For financial planning purposes only at this stage agree the inclusion of the service
charges discussed in Appendix 5.

e) Agree the HRA MTFP 2013-16 as described in Appendix 5.
f) Agree the HRA capital programme as detailed in Appendix 5.

g) Approve draft proposals to be recommended to the Council at its meeting in
February 2013 for the Council’s Capital Programme for the period 2013/14 —
2015/16 (paragraph 12 and Appendix 6)

h) Approve draft proposals, to be recommended to the Council at its meeting in
February 2013 for the Council’'s MTFP 2013/14 — 2015/16 (Appendices 1,2,3 and 4)

4 Other options considered

4.1 This report proposes that the Cabinet should consider draft proposals to deliver a balanced
and sustainable MTFP at its meeting in February 2012. This is in line with the process
adopted in 2011.

4.2 This approach was developed in order to respond to a series of central government funding
cuts that are unprecedented in scale. Additionally, the Council has to plan for a large scale
change in the way Local Government is financed, with very late delivery of the provisional
details.

4.3 Cabinet could choose to adopt a less demanding pace and examine options at a later stage.
There would be more certainty over the exact level of government funding if a delayed
approach was adopted, but there would be less time for robust development and
consideration of options, leading to delays in implementation and delivery.

5 Background information

5.1 The Council’s integrated financial and business planning process is the key mechanism by
which plans and strategies are reviewed to ensure financial resources are allocated



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Page 9
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

effectively to underpin the delivery of the Council’s priorities and performance standards.
This process culminates in the annual review and approval of the Council’s Budget and three
year MTFP.

The Council’s recent strategic financial planning has been driven by the need to respond to
the Coalition Government’s austerity policies designed to reduce the national deficit, with an
emphasis on reducing public expenditure as a percentage of Gross Domestic Product.

The Spending Review (SR 10) contained proposals to reduce local government funding by
28% over the four years of the review up until March 2015. The economy has not grown as
fast as the projections contained in SR 10, therefore in order to reduce public expenditure as
a percentage of GDP, further cuts will have to be made in 2015/16 and 2016/17.

The 28% is an average figure across the country but Haringey Council has been particularly
badly hit; this can be seen when comparisons are made in relation to the estimated change
in revenue spending power per capita from 2010-11 to illustrative 2013-14 funding, inc.
Council tax freeze grant and New Homes Bonus. Haringey is estimated to reduce by £170
per head while Richmond will reduce by £12 per head.

In February 2012 the Council approved its Budget 2012/13 and MTFP 2012-15. The current
year’s budget was balanced through the approval of a continuing savings programme
totalling some £21m over and above the £41m delivered in the previous year. However, the
overall MTFP at that stage showed planned spending exceeding anticipated resources by
some £25m over the period 2012-15.

The strategic direction adopted allowed the Council to set budgets in 2011/12 and 2012/13,
delivering savings of £41m and £21m in both years respectively. At the time of setting the
2012/13 budget in February 2012, the MTFP identified further gaps of £6m (£4m of which
was the estimated cost to the Council of the abolition of Council Tax benefit) for 2013/14 and
£19m for 2014/15. It was noted at the time that the delivery of savings to fill this gap would
be challenging.

The MTFP report to Cabinet in July set out the large number of changes that are being
introduced to both local government finance and welfare reform. This introduced a level of
uncertainty into the planning process that meant accurate figures could not be reported at the
time. However, the Council needed to prepare and plan for the budget, so a number of
scenarios were developed. The report recommended that the medium term scenario be
adopted, i.e. retain a budget gap of £25m, with a view to smoothing out the profile of cuts to
£12.5m in each of the financial years 2013/14 and 2014/15.

In reality, some of the scenarios turned out to be the worst case. The changes to finance
assumptions and the resource base will be set out in section 7. Since July, work has been
undertaken to develop savings proposals after reviewing spending and resource
assumptions. At this stage the draft proposals for 2013/14 to 2015/16 are based on best
estimates, as the Department for Communities and Local Government has announced that
the provisional local government finance settlement will not be available until ‘late
December’. It is therefore almost certain that the proposals will need to be revised in
the light of the settlement.

This report proposes a draft budget package for the three year planning period 2013/14 to
2015/16, and is presented over the following sections:

e Strategic approach
e Financial resources

e Budget pressures



Page 10
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

e Budget and MTFP Revenue proposals
e Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

e Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Capital Programme

6 Strategic approach

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Council’s plans for spending reductions have been framed by a need to ensure that
priority services and outcomes for Haringey citizens were protected as far as possible. This
has been at the core of the Council’s strategic response to austerity and deficit reduction,
encapsulated by the MTFP. The key element of this response is the clear vision for the
Borough defined in “Re-thinking Haringey: Implementing One Borough One Future”.

To reflect this approach, the Council has protected front line services and placed the largest
burden on administration and support services such as Finance, HR, IT and Policy. The
reorganisation of the Council makes it difficult to track budget reductions but the following
estimates give a sense of how the prioritisation has occurred: Children’s 16%; Adults and
Housing 11%; Place and Sustainability 27%; Corporate Resources 29% and Chief
Executive’s 42%.

In July, Cabinet requested Directors to identify draft proposals to save £12.5m in both
2013/14 and 2014/15 to deliver a balanced MTFP for consideration at the next appropriate
meeting. These proposals, along with revisions to assumptions and growth, are presented in
this report. Given that some of the cuts to funding have been worse than originally
envisaged, it has not been possible to develop a balanced position over two years at this
stage. Further modelling including the proposed cuts in 2015/16 and 2016/17 suggest that a
longer term planned approach will be needed in order to deal with the size of future year
resource gaps.

The proposals contained in the report are focussed on balancing the 2013/14 budget,
although some savings are suggested for both 2014/15 and 2015/16. The size of the gap in
the last two years means that the Council will be drawing up comprehensive transformation
plans so that a strategic and prioritised approach will be taken over the medium term.

This report and recommendations have been informed by best estimates of the changes to
Local Government Finance. The Chancellor's Autumn Statement will be presented on the 5
December, and the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement will not be available
until after the date of this meeting. It is a certainty that the figures will change again
leading into the February Cabinet report as a resulit.

7 Financial Resources

71

7.2

The Autumn Statement

TBA — Autumn statement will not be announced until 5 December and this is likely to lead to
changes to our assumptions that could be additionally challenging.

Business Rates Retention Scheme

The MTFP report to July Cabinet gave a high level view of the changes introduced by the
Local Government Finance Bill. Despite promising transparency and simplicity, the new
scheme is opaque and complex. The following paragraphs set out how the scheme will
operate at a very high level, and the assumptions that underpin the current estimates of the
budget gap. However, it is almost certain that these figures will change when the local
government finance settlement is announced.



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Page 11
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

The Business Rates Retention Scheme is a way of allocating the national control total for
local government over all Councils, whilst at the same time providing an opportunity to retain
proceeds from business rates growth in the local economy. Conversely, the risk of lower
business rates due to economic conditions and appeals will be passed to Councils.

At the start of the scheme, the national aggregate for business rates will be split into two.
Half will be allocated to the rate retention scheme (the local share). The national control total
for local government, less the local share, will make up the total of revenue support grant —
this amount includes the other 50% of the national aggregate for business rates. The Greater
London Authority transport and Fire Services grant is then deducted from the local share to
give a revised figure. The national ratio of local share to revenue support grant, estimated as
10.6:13.5, will then be used to allocate Revenue Support Grant and the local share within the
individual authority totals. If this was not complex enough, the way in which local authorities’
funding requirements are calculated are also changing. What this means in practice for
Haringey is that a funding requirement will be calculated using a revised methodology, and
then split between the rate retention scheme and RSG using the nationally derived ratio.

The government is retaining RSG as a means to implement cuts to Council funding as part of
the ongoing austerity policies of the coalition government.

After going through this process, the Council will be notified of the amount that has been
allocated to its rate retention scheme. This is known as the baseline funding level. The
Government will then calculate an individual local authority business rates baseline by
taking an average of the previous 2 years business rates returns, and then allocating 50% of
the national business rates aggregate proportionately. If the business rates baseline is less
than the baseline funding level, the Council will receive a ‘top-up’ from the government.
Conversely, if it is more, the Council will be subject to a ‘tariff and will have to pay the
difference over the central government.

The difficulty in modelling the scheme is that the total allocated to each council — the funding
requirement — will not be known until late December. However, using the existing Formula
Grant methodology, and applying the national totals to the new scheme, the following figures
have been estimated for the London Borough of Haringey for the financial year 2013/14:

£m
Business rates baseline 19.690
Top up 56.902
Baseline funding level 76.593

For information, the Business Rates Baseline is derived as follows:

£m
Gross Business Rates 65.634
Less:
Central Share -32.817
Fire -0.656
GLA Transport -12.470
Baseline funding level 19.690

From the Gross £65.634m business rates derived within the local area, the Haringey
baseline is £19.69m, or 30% of the total.

When the scheme is up and running, any growth in business rates over and above RPI will
be retained by the Council, split 40/60 between the GLA and the Council. For example, if RPI



7.10

7.1

712

713

7.14

7.15

Page 12
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

is 2%, the Council would retain any income above 2% growth in business rates and split it
40/60 with the GLA. If a Council is subject to a fall in business rate income, a ‘safety net will
kick in at 7.5%, i.e. business rates will be allowed to drop to a maximum of 92.5% of the
business rates baseline before government support is received, and even then it will only
provide support over and above the 7.5% drop, not restore it back to 100%. Conversely, if a
Council is deemed by the Government to have ‘disproportionate benefit’ from too high growth
in business rates, then a ‘levy’ will be applied to scale back the growth and pass the money
to the government.

The Haringey baseline funding level is very near the projections derived from government
returns, but this will be refined when the figures are calculated and signed off in January. The
current modelling in the MTFP does not assume that the Council will either lose business
rates income, or grow above RPI.

The Council can only generate additional income by growing the Business Rates baseline-
the ability to increase the business rate multiplier (the increase) will still be retained at a
national level by the Government.

Revenue Support Grant and Grants Rolled in

Additional to the baseline rates retention funding level is RSG and grants rolled into RSG.
Previously, the Government had rolled grants such as Supporting People into RSG, and
during 2013/14 a new tranche of grants will be rolled in. However, before grants are rolled in,
there are a number of changes to RSG that will have an impact on the Council.

The way in which New Homes Bonus (NHB) operates will change from 2013/14 onwards.
Previously, the Government provided funding to incentivise Councils to build new properties
and bring empty properties back into use. Under the new regime, New Home Bonus will be
top sliced from the Local Government Spending totals, and then returned via grant. Those
areas which have house building schemes will benefit, whilst those Councils who cannot
develop new properties within their area, for whatever reason, will lose out. The Government
plans to top slice NHB in 2 tranches, and any money that is not used will be returned to
Councils in year, and deducted again the next year, until the scheme is fully utilised. The
impact on Haringey, which is included in the overall funding predictions (see paragraph
7.18), is estimated as:

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
£m £m £m
New Homes Bonus Returned 8.845 6.808 2.927
Year on year loss 0 2.037 3.881

Current modelling allows for an increase in £1.3m in New Homes bonus Grant in 2013/14,
and no increases thereafter, so by 2015/16, the changes have removed £5.9m from
Haringey’s government support compared to the 2013/14 level.

The Government has also introduced an additional top slice for the safety net (see paragraph
7.9) and capitalisation. Local Government Association calculations have shown that the Levy
should be enough to pay for the safety net, but the Government have consulted on an
additional top slice to local government funding to pay for a shortfall. The same top slice has
been set aside to pay for capitalisation costs. Previously, Government has supplied funding
for Councils who need to capitalise costs, for example redundancies and equal pay.
However, this cost is now being met from Local Government funding. As with New Homes
Bonus, any unused money will be returned to the system and paid back to Councils. It is
currently estimated that £2.547m will be top-sliced from Haringey for this purpose. In
2013/14, it is assumed that 50% of this will be returned to the Council, producing a £1.274m
cost pressure in 2013/14.



7.16

717

7.18

Page 13
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

Another fundamental change to RSG is the treatment of Local Authority Central Services
Equivalent Grant (LACSEG). This is funding that the Council receives to provide central
services to schools. Under a new regime, consulted on during the autumn, the Government
will now top slice the LACSEG grant from RSG, and return the amount to the local area,
although Academies will now be paid direct for their element of the grant. The removal of this
grant is estimated to cost the Council £1.2m in the first year of operation, with an additional
£600k in both 2014/15 and 2015/16 to reflect further schools moving to Academy status.

In order to estimate the total quantum of RSG, grants rolled in need to be added. The
following changes are occurring:

Early Intervention Grant — the Council received £16.4m Early Intervention Grant in
2012/13. This was a non ring-fenced grant that the Council could utilise for any purpose. The
Government has top-sliced £150m from this grant to fund their own early intervention
programmes, and the estimated amount to be received by Haringey is £15.7m. However, the
Government has also introduced a change which means that the element of the grant that
was nominally for 2 year olds is now being passported to Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).
The General Fund element will be £12m, which means a £4.4m reduction in non ring-fenced
grants. £1.4m costs have been identified in Children’s and Young Peoples Services that can
be transferred to DSG, but this still leaves the Council approximately £3m short due to the
changes. As the grant moves forward into future years, the proportion passported to DSG
increases, costing the Council £654k in 2014/15. This change is seen as particularly hard to
understand, and despite lobbying by the LGA and London Councils, it is still going ahead.
However, the methodology used to calculate the grant will be changing in line with formula
grant changes, so the exact amounts may differ when the overall finance settlement is
announced.

Learning Disabilities Grant — this grant will continue at an estimated £3.7m in 2013/14,
£3.8m in 2014/15 and £3.9m in 2015/16.

Council Tax Freeze Grant — the Government will continue to pay the 11/12 element of the
Council Tax freeze grant as a part of RSG. This is £2.5m for Haringey.

Council Tax Support Grant — the government is abolishing Council Tax benefit and
replacing it with a local support scheme, as set out in the following sections. The grant for
this scheme is being rolled into RSG, and will be £26.1m.

Preventing Homelessness — the Council received £925k in 2012/13, and £746k has been
rolled into RSG, costing the Council £179k

Local Flood Grant — this has been rolled into RSG at previously budgeted levels of £207k.

Taking these changes into account, the estimated revised resource base for the Council in
2013/14 is a follows:

£m
Retained Business Rates 19.7
Top up 56.9
Total Business rates retention scheme 76.6




7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

Page 14
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

New Homes Bonus Returned 8.8
Revenue Support Grant 89.5
Safety Net/Capitalisation returned 1.3
Total Government Support in MTFP 176.2

The MTFP then assumes that government support will reduce in 2014/15 by 7.9%, and
2015/16 by 7.4%, in line with current projections and Government Policy.

Core Grants

A number of core grants will still be retained outside of Revenue Support Grant, and the
changes are as follows:

Housing Growth Grant — this grant has not been continued, costing the Council £51,000

Rights to Free Travel Grant — this grant has not been continued, costing the Council
£24,000

Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit — Council Tax Benefit will not exist beyond April
2013, and Housing Benefit will eventually disappear as it is transitioned to Universal Credit.
Exemplifications by the Department of Work and Pensions have shown that the grant will
decrease by £297k in 2013/14, with further reductions of £1m in 2014/15 and £75k in
2015/16 as the transfer to Universal Credit starts.

NHS grant to support care and benefit health - The 2010 Spending Review set aside an
additional £2bn to support the delivery of social care, recognising the pressure on the
system. The MTFP expected that £1.4m would be received in 2013/14, and the provisional
notification indicates that £3.6m will be received, a positive variation of £2.2m. It has been
assumed that the grant will decrease in 2014/15, as changes to the way in which the Council
interacts with the Health Service start to operate.

Council Tax Freeze Grant — The Council has indicated that it will freeze Council Tax levels
in 2013/14, thus making it eligible for the Governments recently announced Council Tax
Freeze Grant. This is being made available in both 2013/14 and 2014/15 at a level equivalent
to a 1% rise in 2012/13 Council Tax. £1m has been included in the MTFP in 2013/14 and
2014/15 for this grant. The Government will propose to lower the local authority tax
referendum threshold to two per cent in 2013/14. This would mean if a local authority seeks
to raise its relevant basic amount of council tax by more than two per cent, residents would
have the right to call a binding referendum. Details on these matters will be released as part
of the December settlement.

Local Council Tax Support Scheme

The analysis above refers to the £26.1m grant that is part of the revised arrangements for
supporting people on low incomes with their Council Tax bills, but the implementation of the
scheme has further ramifications, especially its effect on the Council Tax base.

As reported to Cabinet in July, the Government is abolishing Council Tax Benefit and asking
Councils to replace it with a local support scheme with a significantly reduced funding base
to pay for it.

In effect, this is a decision to cut the UK welfare budget, and transfer the cost to Councils
leaving them with the difficult decisions about implementation. The government is also
requiring councils to protect pensioners from the cut in benefits, so the cut in grant to the
Council, once any increase in the number of claimants is taken into account, is estimated to
be more like 15%, as opposed to the 10% as stated by CLG.

Haringey has consulted on how we manage the cut to our funding for the Council tax



7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

Page 15
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

reduction scheme. The details on how this will operate, and the impact on residents, have
been consulted on and the responses are being considered. The scheme will be formally
approved at a special full Council on 17 January. However, in order to develop the MTFP we
have used the proposals in our consultation for planning assumptions.

Due to this abolition of Council tax benefit, the monies associated with it will now transfer to
general grant as opposed to Council tax income. The means that the MTFP currently
contains £75.2m for Council Tax, as opposed to the £103m generated in 2012/13. Critically
this means any future rise in demand for Council tax support will become detached from
levels of demand.

The MTFP has also been adjusted for movements in the tax base and bad debts, but clearly
shows that the Council is less able to generate resources by making decisions about the
level of Council Tax. The ratio of Council Tax received to Government support is known as
‘gearing’, and a consequence of the local support scheme is that the Council has become
more highly geared.

If a comparison is made between 2012/13 and 2013/14 therefore, a fairly significant
reduction in the Council tax base results as grant will in future be provided for CT support
through the RSG settlement and not as a direct receipt of support for Council Tax payers.

Even after approximately £10m cuts in government funding, the Council generates 9% less
of its resource from Council Tax in 2013/14 than it did in 2012/13. This means that the
Council is more reliant on government funding than it ever has been. The Government may
well argue that Business Rates Retention offsets this, but as described above, it is not that
straightforward, and the Government will still set the increase for NNDR nationally.

Reserves

The Cabinet will consider the need for and the level of both specific and general financial
reserves at its meeting on 12 February 2013.

Fees and Charges

A separate report will be considered by this meeting setting out the outcomes of a review of
fees and charges, and will make recommendations for increases across specific service
areas for 2013/14. At this point in time, £350k has been allowed for increased fees and
charges in the MTFP, but any revisions arising from decisions made at this meeting will be
reported at February Cabinet and the figures adjusted accordingly.

8 Budget Pressures

8.1

8.2

8.3

Service Demand and cost pressures

The MTFP report to July Cabinet identified that the MTFP approved in February 2012 allows
for planned increases in demographic growth, and also that particular pressures are being
felt in the Adults and Housing Service. Appendix 2 shows the proposed revenue investments
for the planning period, totalling £6.1m over the three years. The majority (£6m) of these
relate to transition and continuing care costs in the Adults service.

Pension Fund

The pension fund is undergoing a statutory revaluation of the assets and liabilities, and this is
expected to increase employers’ contributions by £1m from 2014/15 onwards.

Youth Justice Board

Under current remand legislation Local Authorities have a statutory duty to meet the costs of
placing children remanded to Local Authority secure accommodation where this has been
ordered by the court. Following an agreement with the Home Office in 1999, the Youth



8.4

8.5

8.6

Page 16
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

Justice Board (YJB) has given financial assistance to local authorities in this regards (2/3rd
towards cost), although there is no statutory requirement for it to do so. This agreement will
cease on 31st March 2013. From 1st April 2013 Local Authorities will assume full financial
responsibility for the costs of remands to secure children's homes and secure training centre.
This change will cost the Council £768k.

Collection Fund

The 2011/12 out-turn showed that the Collection Fund has generated a deficit for the second
year running, and identified that a review would be carried out into the underlying reasons.
This work is on-going.

Taking account of discounts, existing deficits and the impact of the reduction in Council Tax
benefit, the proposed MTFP allows for an adjustment of £1.6m. Given the changes to the tax
base set out in paragraph 7.24, further cost pressures may have to be reported in February
after the Council Tax Support Scheme has been approved in January.

Treasury Management

Budget forecasts for 2012/13 reported to this committee indicate that savings are being
made in treasury management. These £1m savings have been projected forward into
2013/14.

9 Budget and MTFP Revenue Proposals

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

Achieving currently approved savings

Services have identified that £1.904m of pre-agreed savings for 2013/14 will now need to be
re-profiled into 2014/15 and 2015/16. £1.292m is on track for delivery in 2014/15, £230k in
2015/16, £200k submitted as new/replacement savings, and £182k regarded as no longer
deliverable. In order to keep pressures to a minimum, it is proposed that the £1.904m re-
profiling in 2013/14 is funded from reserves.

Inflation and pay provisions

The Chancellor has continued to set a cap on public sector pay of 1%, and this is reflected in
assumptions. Utilities and external contracts are provided for on a contract by contract basis,
and given the level of uncertainty in the economy, a small (£500k p.a.) allowance for general
inflation has been included.

The approved MTFP allows for £5.5m in 2013/14 and £8m in 2014/15, the revised
assumptions now included are £4.7m and £5.0m which will represent a saving to the revised
MTFP of £800k and £3m respectively.

New savings proposals

In July Cabinet noted the initial review of financial assumptions for the period 2013-16, and
requested Directors to identify draft proposals to deliver a balanced and sustainable MTFP.
Cabinet required £12.5m for both 2013/14 and 2014/15 to be delivered.

The savings proposals set out in Appendix 2 show a total of £13.852m, of which £7.083m will
be delivered in 2013/14, £6.144m in 2014/15 and £0.625m in 2015/16.

Summary Position

Appendix 1 shows the current summary position of the MTFP from 2013/14 to 2015/16. After
allowing for all of the analysis and assumption in this report, the gap is still £1.336m in
2013/14, £18.902m in 2014/15 and £22.961m in 2015/16. This results in a total funding gap



Page 17
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

of £43.199m over the life of the plan.

9.7 More work is required before the position to 31 March 2014 is balanced, and the results of
the provisional local government finance settlement have yet to be factored in.

10 Dedicated Schools Grant

10.1 TBA - requires Schools Forum consideration on 6 December

11 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

11.1 A detailed analysis of the HRA MTFP and Capital programme are contained is set out in
Appendix 5

12 Capital Programme
13 Capital

13.1 The revised draft capital programme over the next three years is £222.85m. A breakdown by
directorate and proposed sources of funding can be seen in the table below. The revenue
implications of this level of capital expenditure, in terms of borrowing costs and ongoing
revenue expenditure on capital assets have been fully reflected in the MTFP.

13.2 In planning the capital programme, the aim has been to maximise the use of external funding
and capital receipts and to limit the use of long-term prudential borrowing to that which has
been agreed as part of the planning process last year. This approach is designed to
minimise the impact of the programme on the general fund.

13.3 The table below shows the current projected spend by directorate area, and provides a
summary of the sources of funding.

Draft Expenditure Proposed | Indicative | Indicative | Total
Budget Budget Budget
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Place & Sustainability 23,947 9,125 7,133 | 40,205
Children & Young People 20,228 8,918 6,350 | 35,496
Adults & Housing 2,036 2,036 2,036 6,108
HRA 34,202 55,818 47,319 | 137,339
Other 1,600 1,000 1,100 3,700




Page 18
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

| Total Capital Programme | 82,013 | 76,897 | 63,938 | 222,848 |

Draft Capital Funding

Government Grants 8,781 8,507 6,886 | 24,174
Other Grants 11,484 947 1,583 | 14,014
Capital Receipts 16,073 10,128 7,600 | 33,801
Section 106 463 0 0 463
HRA 34,202 55,818 47,319 | 137,339
Reserves & Revenue 2,135 450 550 3,135
Prudential Borrowing (pre-agreed) 8,875 1,047 0 9,922
Total Capital Financing 82,013 76,897 63,938 | 222,848

13.4

The main areas of expenditure are as follows:

Place & Sustainability

The directorate has several large programmes underway including ongoing work in
Tottenham and Northumberland Park, Wood Green Town Centre, and there is
significant investment planned for carriageway maintenance works which have been
limited in each of the past two years.

The Council has a long term commitment to make available £5m for the
Northumberland Park Development project currently projected as required after
15/16. Capital receipts will need to be generated and reserved to meet this
commitment over the planning period.

The current projected spend on Hornsey Town Hall over the next 3 years is some
£5.3m. Itis currently planned to fund this expenditure from the associated capital
receipt from the sale of the site. The progress of this scheme is subject to a
satisfactory funding agreement with Mountview.

A further phase of the accommodation strategy relates to the re-provision of office
accommodation and other changes in the location of existing services.

Children & Young People's Services

The majority of the capital expenditure is on the Primary and Pre-School
programme, and the expansion of school places. This programme continues to be
predominantly funded by government grants, with some limited pre-agreed
prudential borrowing.

Housing Revenue Account

Other

It is projected that the HRA will be able to meet all planned expenditure from its own
resources under the self-financing regime. There has been a reduction in the level
of planned expenditure on Decent Homes in 2013-14, with works now planned to
take place in 2014-15 and 2015-16.

The Alexandra Park and Palace (AP&P) Regeneration scheme is aimed at
transforming the Palace into a financially self-sustaining mixed leisure,
entertainment and learning venue consistent with the Trust’s objectives. To date the
Council has required the Palace to make revenue savings and redirect those
savings to fund the preparatory work for regeneration. It is proposed that this
approach should be continued.



Page 19
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

= |t should also be noted that the AP&P Charitable Trust Board recently considered a
report proposing a Major Grants bid to the Heritage Lottery Fund for some
£16million. This would require match funding of £6.7million to be generated. The
Council is committed to assisting the Trust in its fund raising from internal and
external funding streams to address the funding gap.

A more detailed analysis of the capital programme can be found in Appendix 6. (Narratives
will be added prior to the report being finalised for Cabinet)

13.5 At this stage there is uncertainty over some of the external funding streams, including TfL
funding for Highways expenditure, funding for School Place Expansion, and GLA funding for
Tottenham regeneration. As these funding allocations are confirmed, there will be further
reports back to Cabinet seeking authority to amend the programme accordingly.

13.6 There will also continue to be opportunities to introduce invest-to-save schemes which have
a strong business case.

13.7 As has been stated above, in developing the capital programme proposals, the aim has been
to maximise the use of external funding and capital receipts. In terms of the latter the Council
is continuing to review its property portfolio looking for opportunities to both rationalise our
use of service based accommodation and to divest ourselves of land and buildings which are
no longer required. Capital funding levels will therefore continue to be closely monitored
together with further development opportunities linked to surplus Council land or buildings.

13.8 There are some risks associated with the disposal programme and it is assumed that a
number of significant disposals which, between them, represent approx. 50% of the total
projections over the 3 years of the programme. The profile has been adjusted to reflect this
risk, however it may be appropriate to use temporary borrowing if slippage in receipts occurs.

14 Consideration of the Financial Years 2015/16 and 2016/17 for the MTFP

14.1 The July MTFP report identified that there is potential for further cuts to Local Government
funding in 2015/16 and 2016/17, beyond the current CSR. Modelling of the potential impact
in 2015/16, assuming inflation and service pressures show that a further £23m cuts may be
required, and this is reflected in Appendix 1. Assuming the same level of pressure, and
adjusting for funding reductions, the gap in 2016/17 would be £21m. This means that in
addition to the projected £84m reductions up the end of 2013/14, the Council would have to
find an estimated further £60m up to the end of 2016/17, meaning that in total the Council
would have implemented reductions of £144m over the period, equivalent to just over 50% of
its current budget of £278m.

15 Consultation

15.1 Consultation meetings on the budget proposals will be held across the whole of Haringey
during December and January, and residents will be also given the opportunity to engage
with the process online.

15.2 The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and associated Panels, will also be
examining the proposals during the coming weeks. Both the feedback from Scrutiny and the
results of the consultation will be included in the February Cabinet report.

16 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications

16.1 As the report is primarily financial in its nature, comments of the Chief Financial Officer are
contained throughout the report.

17 Head of Legal Services and legal implications



Page 20
DRAFT as at 30 November 2012

To be inserted
18 Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments
18.1 Equalities issues are a core part of the Council’s financial and business planning process.
19 Head of Procurement Comments
19.1 Not applicable
20 Policy Implication

20.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan represents the resource framework for delivery of Council
Policy and objectives.

21 Use of Appendices

21.1 Appendix 1 — Summary of the MTFP 2013/14 to 2015/16
21.2 Appendix 2 — Savings proposals to 2015/16

21.3 Appendix 3 — Investment Proposals to 2015/16

21.4 Appendix 4 — re-profiling of pre-agreed savings

21.5 Appendix 5— Housing Revenue Account

21.6 Appendix 6 — Capital Programme

22 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
22.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
e Financial planning 2012-13 to 2014-15 - Cabinet 19 July 2011

e Financial Planning 2012-13 to 2014-15 — mid year budget update — Cabinet 4
October 2011

e Financial Planning 2012-13 to 2014-15 — Cabinet 20 December 2011
e Financial Planning 2012-13 to 2014-15 — Cabinet 7 February 2012

e Financial Planning 2013-14 to 2015-16 -

22.2 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Barry Scarr,
Interim Head of Corporate Finance, on 0208 489 3743.



Page 21

Appendix 1

Medium Term Financial Plan Summary 2013/14 to 2015/16

2013114 2014/15 2015/16 Total
£000's £000's £000s £000's

Reported Budget Gap as at February 2011 6,051 19,273 0 25,324
Changes to the Council's Resource Base

Earley Intervention Grant passported to DSG 3,043 654 0 3,697
Central LACSEG removed from RSG 1,246 600 600 2,446
Modelling assumptions based on draft Council Tax

Support Scheme -3,000 0 0 -3,000
Phased loss of Benefits Adminstration Subsidy 297 1,000 750 2,047
Revised Collection Fund Assumptions 1,681 0 0 1,681
Housing Growth Grant discontinued 51 0 0 51
Rights to Free Travel Grant discontinued 24 0 0 24
Learning Disabilities Grant - revised forecast -131 -83 0 214
Preventing Homelessness Grant - revised forecast 179 0 0 179
NHS Grant - revised forecast -2,180 1,790 0 -390
Assumption that only 50% of New Homes

Bonus/Capitalisation top slice may return 1,297 -649 0 648
Increased New Homes Bonus Grant -1,336 0 0 -1,336
Change in RSG levels over estimates etc. -921 2889 11,366 13,334
Council Tax Freeze Grant -1,000 0 1000 0
Revised Gap after Resource Changes 5,301 25,474 13,716 44,491
Service and Demand Pressures

Estimated Pensions vevaluation from 14/15 onwards 0 1,000 0 1,000
Growth Proposals 4,500 960 640 6,100
Savings Proposals -7,083 -6,144 -625 -13,852
Reprofiling and revisions to pre-agreed sgvings 1,904 -1,292 230 842
Youth Justice Board - withdrawal of funding 768 0 0 768
Revised inflation assumptions -800 -3,000 5,000 1,200
Estimated demographic pressure 0 0 4,000 4,000
Estimated Fees and Charge increases -350 0 0 -350
Treasury Management - improved forecast -1,000 0 0 -1,000
Re-profiling met from reserves -1,904 1,904 0 0
Net Gap to find as at December 2012 1!333 13!902 22!951 43|199

A1



Page 22

AL



Page 23

Z xipuaddy

14vdd

TS8'ET 29 v1'9 | €80°L ——
(13 4 0 StL SOL'T $32Jn0s3Yy 3jesodio)
65S 09 ¥9¢ SET IIAIBS S, 8AINIBXT JAIYD
1S8°T 002 086 1.9 Aujiqeuressns '3 asejd
0009 0 SL6'T 520’ SIIIAIDS S,UDIpIIYD
TI0’e S9€ 00C't LYt Suisnoy 3 synpy
000.3 000,3 000.3 000.3
jeoL | 9T/ST0Z | ST/P1OC | YT/ETOT

uoneJapIsuod 1o} sjesodold sSuines




14vad

HO[INPa1 1500 PeNUO) Pedi| DAIS oz_ 0s 0 uopERoBaual
P2 0 = Benu0 (eseqeiep Jusid SyYNpy '§ UAIPIYD) 1 LOMBWE) Sl )
g : 2 aduep Aduapiya) Juawaaosdui|
aueyd ss3202d SwsAs e Juimojjoy Aou uy “pedw) PAIAS oz_ ot T {
= i , 2 WasAs (aseq e1ep AP YNPY B LIIP|IYD} 1-410MBWES] Y Py viv
paA3iyoe aq
I sButnes asay) sapuaBe u3IMIAG LONESOqEN UO Siseydwa J31ea.8 € ‘suopedypads adas|  0sE 00T 00z 0s A8a1ens 101035 Areuniop anpy £V
PAsIO0) 10w HIomaWwes3 BujuoisSIWWO) J03IaS AlejunjoA 33 JO uopeuBwajdus 3y ySnos
JuUBIBA ARUBLIND- 1500
‘3500 JUEIBA T 2
§8_ = 2 S = T 21913p (sapjunioddo Aeq) Jayiom Loddns Aupqesig Burusea sunpy av
B34 © J2N0 10§ Pi3Y SeY NAISS B 3 S B P ‘3504 T 3243p- (weay
uogisod JuedeA e 5| Sjy & ‘AIRAN3p 321135 U0 Pedus) Ol 10 3RY| 51 AIBYY '150d WEIBA U NIRQ JuawWIdEld Ynpy) Janiom Hoddns Ayunwwo) Aupgesia Suiuwiea) |unpy nv
Rt g~ -
- sumanas uswsBeuew 3y Bursyieuogies Jo wie 3y yum sisod ot ° - — “(Juedea Apuasnd )
Asosisadns pue wawaBeuew sonjuniiolidg Aeg sanyiqesia Buiusea) 10 Supnpnns-ai e sy sy $350d §'t 33313p- BINPNNSIY sepunisoddg Aeq Aunqesig Suiwear i i3
-150d Sjy3 Inoym aBeuew 0} 4qissod mou
513 JuaWaBURLIE DRIIL0D JWNJOA PUe 1500 YBn010q- 113 0 BulAowW 5 IDAITS siea pue pasop| o ] 0 oy *350d 3U0 $0 uoNaEP- JABeUEHY PeU0T Bujsne) synpy &v
ALY SIWOY |E[jUIP{TA MON * JOSIADR UORLANY, BWOY PUR 1384100 S|eaw SI0uoW 13 SaBeuely
< *150d I oYUM aBeurew 03 JqiSSOd MOU St Y SAINSOP
(q\| BYl UBAY “UMOP-daS PRLBYIYS PUE PISOID MOU SALY LPIYM SSWOH [BAUBPISIY Y} JOf SeM SE 0 13 0 350d T 4O UORAJAP - 1971430 10dONG BIAIAS - FDIAIAS UONUIADIG synpy 8v
® WOM Y3 40 IS0 "JMIGNd 3P YUM PRI 1DIP oU S) 31343 pue 150d Bupe)-1u0y 30U S| Syl
w 1504 JUIA "03 PayNaL U3 JaA3u sey 12y 350d MAU B 5] STy se Pedwi Mol OF 0 0 3 *350d T JO UOR3JSP- 19%0M JUBWaIQEY J0IUIG SYnpy v
(2l uojsues ay) Isjsse 03 pasinbas sisod Asesodwal jeuoppe al INOYUM AjaMIYD
paBieuew aq ued 201A5as 3yl pue patesBagu) Altn; U33G Sey D4AIAS 31 JeY) SURDW spasu|  ott 0 s8 74 S1sod ¢ 313[3p - 0P 3cIBS Aeq Asesodwag i) Aeq synpy ov
yyeay jeaishyd pue |E1UBW Y104 Aey oym 3idoad LM YoM 03 yers Joj Suuen [nyssaNg
? g Y
uj uopnpas Aue 1sureBe a1e8Riw 0} 3jge 3q pnoys WawaBeuew swasks wopya | 59 o 9 $150d OM3 JO UORINPIY "S1AVYYO Weag $5a03V paresdau| synpy SV
Asampap aomias vo pedwion] e . 0 H UBWSSasse pue uoResIfeuosIad UIYUM IUIWRA0 W) SS32044 it -
*$2553004d SSBUISNG 0] SIFUBLD PUE UCHEYNSUDI JEIS UL}
B1INB3A (1M PUE LE1S RI0M [B1905 JO JUIWABLUL FYY JO BMIDNIISS IBIE] © IAOAU] [[1M §f ozz o ozy oot 9IS JUIISSITSY JIOM [BPOS INPY JO UBisapay [npY 13
“SSujaes Juljjers|
248 us) YSnony sBujaes 1M S
e siasdec sl sl __M__.Sﬁaﬁh% \.uuuia. 1 _aa“sﬁ.w,.._ “___is " M”" “JUBWISSISSY JJOM 205 Ajqissod
08t 0 o8t (4] pue Adesay) jeuonedndQ Joj AsaAap S01AI3s JO [3POW MAN synpy 144
Juled yateay Ajuniuiiod B Im JUBWSSIsse [enos pue Adesayl [euopednodo jo uonesBaus i)
:as0(dxa 0} 5; [esodolg
SINPNLSI PUE SUNSOP DJAISS JO
343 uj 1s0d JaBeuew 10juas T JO UORIIAP € wea) uawaBeuew Jowas W o uonpases syt OF 08 0 Y voRINpas Buers synpy v
U sRUSng
0003 0003 | 0003 000.3 ey
N B B o ot 18 w0 L 93 /v st i | vifevee fesodasd Bupaes g Anapusa ss fareropang !
Suisno} '3 synpy - sjesodosd sSuines

(w00) 7 xipuaddy

Pt




Page 25

13vid

no'e 3¢ 00T 1, 49

‘AIaAiap a0IAIDS UO dedut) ON 5 0 0 LS vV

"Pap|ACId LIOGTTS PUE PAYISI00 1URl JO SjaAD] 9oNPas .,.s__ ozt 0 ov 08 v
*Weal 3Y3 JO 32)S {{eIIN0)

343 U} UOPINPA € pue 3500 JaNYO BUPMOIIAAO IsiePIds Y1 40 Uopep o sanoauy sty 0P 0 o 09 SapuedeA SuoRdQ 3 APV 0uu.aa_ Buisnon wv
“[3A3) JUSLITD 941 1€ SUjEW] PUBWISP JEY SOWNSIE SIYL "S9PUSPLD

Joj adoos pajeas sey suojiedidde pue 1351831 Busnoy B J0 uopewaINe paseanuyl| 03 o 0 05 wedy SUIWsSassy Buisno syl Uy stsod 333._ Bujsnoy v
$4e1s jeuoissajoud uﬁsgsmggﬂ&ogm

© 3q Pinod 35941 LPIYM INOYUM ‘pas3pye Bupsq SUBWRA0I0WY $530:d UD spuadap Bumes sy | OF o 0t or Uoddng aoiARs /Y294 [BpowaY 8ujsnoy ozv

‘PaP3Ye aq PiN0d duewWOLAd Ty YSU B 5) 2I3Y) PUR PIINPAS 3q {IIM Wea) 3R 5 et &
uj Apede) aﬁ#osgsoeg?ug%;%«ﬁ_gsggtg_ > 0 0 ov oI UOSIET]AUAWSSASSY §H [RPOWaY ISNOH IV
“SUpqIsuodsal pue suopduny Jo 38ues sapeasq e YIM wed) 3jBuls e eI 0} we _

SunIsiA PIEIIP3P 32 40 UON3IP PUE SWea) SBUNIB} oM JO saBiaw auy sanoau Bupes siyy| 0L 0 opslisoc suopouny BupisiA pue sBUma] v1/10035 Nensd [3poway|  Bursnod sy

"UeULINLIBT U0 1IRTW| Ue ey dI0JRIF]
8
Aew “91Q1ssod s 16 58 PIsIWIIL G 1M Sy3 YBNOLE Keas Buy oy awos apnpu) oy k| %0¥ e | spuspy3 Juyes sauungl  sunpy av
0{AIDS JB2SQ € NUISVIAAI pue 3.ed JO [Ppous PassdRId Y3 S) I Yons sy AYunw - = 5
Y3 UiyUm urewas 03 sJuP sdipy pue aouapuadapu) sarcwasd Jey) e jo Ppow sl ST 0st 0 0 ponesp 0.. _“ﬁefg%.uz ue.wﬂ 9...”::8 ~ily uz._aﬂsw_nﬂ Synpy 147
Bujany payoddng “synpe pajqestp Sunok UDAIS 03 XIS JOJ BWIRYIS Busnop paysoddng e dojaaaq U pasoddng
uq ssausng
000,3 0003 | 0003 | 0003 e
TG SLRS) SN B0 DO o SN i | sxenez | sxveec v /enec Lot e Tl epwses/mesonasg
3usnoy 18 SYNPY - sjesodoug sBuines

{wo3) Z xpuaddy

AS



Page 26

{iwo0) 2 xpusddy

14vid

000y

S0’ SEHARS S URIPIND (130)]
“y3eoudde payun asow e YBNONR SAPUIPIYD SR SIPUIDYJD IAINPE 03 SIIALIS Lioddng
PUE 240 3y3 25 FEUORE) GF U] 3M "dDA PUR UCSINOLY Iatewsaly] oSz oot 0ST | snomeysg pue uorsNoIg BpeWRYY Bupuay e 9&8:8:3.._ 6
‘SOA U1 AJ3AI[DP 301AJ3S pue TuawaBeusUl JO ARMIBPUN S) MBI V] Yinoy, 104 syuwsaBuease JO UOREPHOSUDY) o
“S3{[il1E) 03 Ja}40 A0 PIACIOW] PUE SIS00 IO PINPS]
3ABY SPIRIBATY PUE X008 NG 12 5208jd [230] :0u1 40 uogsmosg| 05T ost oot uﬁgz&sgg_ sayyuwed pue uasppyo)| 80
AAIRS A Jo Asuow|  §TT 172 0s g:.”rg!“ungﬁ " Uuﬁ“.”!ﬁn 2 safjwed pue udspinp| £
40§ 3njea pue duewI0pAd A A0sdw) 0) pajedppue s) [esodosd sy $334A95 Uogdopy YIS0 Maay
uawded 2ouenly BaeAS UOPUDT YHON Y} JO oM
10 92(0Y Uy 1ORINP31 U] YNS2) Aew pred o4d uy SB:B.__ = 0 ’ 3 woy Bupoy summes Buuorssiuwo) Jv| o d PUR URIPIDL 9D
"fewjulW 3q pcys duswioad IV} 40 SIPGUINY U] SUCRINPaJ SUINO[O3)
uo edw) a3 pauuerd se suaddey Jv] L) UOMIND) 3l den Buipposg] OB L3 - Sa3iAI95 1Jew07 J0) Pasu ot Uy uopanpay|  TNWES Pue LIpY| ©
‘TRWRIW 3G pnoys *sBu1pa30oud 3183 12May|
uo 1edu) 2w pauverd se suadddy 5v1 uj voganges o 1w Buipinosg|  00F 0s 95 | jo3msas e se 1a8png ssomsag (¢837 ujuoponpay] SRS Pue uaspmpf 1)
‘Y140 spaquiny
{ewsw 3 pnoys us_ues.ba_
374 oSt S8 uj suopINpas pue sassacoud uouaasan Aeal  sagued pue vasppyd| €9
uadd
uo Pedwi 3y pauueyd se suaddey Iy uj UORINP3S AQ Je Buiposy sy - > e
“sBupes 03 sounqiauod Aduapyje uesisuil  ost 05t “SIANAIIG S1eap Aue3 jo maaan] serpweg pue vasppl O
SINOQYBI3U |EINSIIEIS UOPUDT JBULE INO JO duEtiLysad a8z iane] . _
210 [ 3u G3U] [PUROD 34 Buyiq (M 1N 395 13853 31 Fumanpy 099y 0sz'z (x4 QUIWI3Rd IV U UORINPIY|  saywes pue vaspip]| TD
Hup ssaupng
0003 | 0003 | o003 | o003 ) oy
(As3a313q 3AIDS) BNBUUOUBG U0 J3ediL) /UORLULIO] SFYUN [esodosd Supaes
) %t | o1 | ov/svoz | semroz | wiseroe ® Avepun 3RS /evRiowag
SBUAIBS S, udIPIY) - Sjesodouy sBupes

Ab




Page 27

%s'T
Do & 6t Aq A3Buisel J0) SPWoH 03 salseyd U ¥53d uy aseanu)| unuosy aus £1d

*sfesodosd JuawaBeBua pue suopensuod
3uipuoJJ 3(ButS 10) 1:00dns JO [9AI) AjqerieAe 3 Bupnpa)

oSy “Sisi] UORNQIASIP BurureIufEw put sueid UoRY ey Bunsoddns| T w1 Swnsod / s9U0) €Y Joj usuRBusiy 0y uosAY|  Jutauosiafus | 7Td
10U SIPRPU] YOIYM SINUWAWO0) eIy 03 Loddns 3y 3ampau of |
1s0d T JO VOR3P 3P
53d0 Y 3
%01 Aq ssnoy Bune |Bonpas fmacjasayll  ob ov e % | ) 45011 aunworaBus | TId
“SUOLDUNY U pue SupsissIUIL0)
29A10¢ 30 uogesueP 09, pue uoRINpal e jo Ued se ‘Pedun pagpun 0s 0s Buyms :ns7 vy uoPINPaL BYLNY|  umyn) pue unsi3) | otd
‘ g»ﬂhzsgog; 00t 00t INASRS Asesqr] S{IOW JO UORRA]  iMyN) pue amsian 6d
Q “Sysed fe Bursn pue Supny 10 1500 31 53400 03 Adjod dojaASP pue Yied
P Ainqsuty 1€ LRSI YL IA0WAI 0 P32V pinom aBuzp ay| sysed] S8 sy oy yed Angsuld u) SIU3A3 250w Motie &3 Axjod Puno) puawy|  asmyn) pue s | gd
u} SISAAI 104 Adjjod paasBe s [Puno) Ay uj ABue e Anbas [m
Qo Busoﬁa_ooﬁma_gngst!__#gsgs_ co_%oz_ oL o $jooyds 03 salzeyd 520U - Bupuugms jooyds]  asmyn) pue aunsi) | 2d

PT/ETOT U) 92jAI95 34} U] JUSUNSIAURI XOET J0) 3piroid pue ‘vopysod

snyduns e 0 AJaA0334 3500 [[1y Wou 530210 2A0W MM ALV Y| 09 0t e $33j U asea0U] - SUBUROY|  AMN) pue sk 94
peod o (73 SL wea) Juawadeueyy uoqre) UM JudwaBeus iy 33npay 34d Sd
3apun yt0m 5193{01d 0 JuAWHO3AIP UBALE JUIWATEURBI U] LORINERY _
U ssauisng Ny

SS0.08 SINHGISUOTSY JO UOREIO[EY pue JuBWITeuR U| Sauax.x— o8 o8 WwawaBeuey RS U 1504 1IPEF) WeaL 13430 3ud L
vedwioN| sz sz $394 BURUURId WL} 200U} [PUORIPPY 3yd &d

33f0sd

*s303d JUNI e s3Bsep 33y BujuRIurRW AQ pue S30IN0SI) paseys sofeyy 13 Ajsadosg MUN SSIUSNG MBU € UL0J 0) SIB{0Id
40 3N JUB1IYSD ds0ul uo pANe3PIsd sBumes anuAAIY 'NIfosd uteBe| 002 001 001 feade) pue Ausadoud a1es0d:0) 50 saBsew yBnos 3soddns]  Aysadolg ayesodio) | Zd

uonesjeider Aq papuny weal ARaiep 1ajosd eyded jo Auofew aanessiupe/uonewsoju pue Loddns iuawaBeuew

Pfosd ‘WawRBeuew 10iuds u| sBues Aduapyyl

*samod Burseypund
Supsiumrews pue uonesiprepuels YSnosig SISOD JOMO| IAIRPIE

‘paredppue s AsaaiRp 30A12s o Pedwi assaape ON] 00T St 174 01 SBurpyng Pardno30 JOUNGD) e 203 v 5o Auadosg aesodso) | 14
senijPed Jo uogesEeAuad yBnoip sBupes ASuapys
Won SSouRng
003 | o003 | o0e3 | o003 =t i eary
(A 2ops9s) SouruLIoydg UO PRAWINORULOII MM ) | g/eroz | st/vtoe | vi/etoe : g e oopsas /ates0338:0

Ayjiqeutersns '3 ddeyd - siesodoud sduines

{100} 2 mpuaddy

¥




Page 28

(w02) 7 mpuaddy

14vdd

A8

157 3

R0} g

AypeurEng @ somyg
"5138se3 asuewisapad Buisueap 19945 |[BI3A0 UO PISU M
FeRUA0d 31 Bursiwiuus uo PaexPasd 2 M 3dWIss Uy Buep Auy] 0% i Eﬁ??%ﬁﬁﬁanﬁ.aii.gg_ dunwaydBus |14
IPUR0D 1P Aq PaII300 saEPAIRS PABLIUILIC) j0 SPAD] ) SISERU] ~—~ oot (SdD) ButpAda: paBunuuos so} Quauiked se Apoyny, sunwosadus  |srd
01 patef) 5] BwOdU] PISEADU] B - AIBARP IAIIS U0 Pedu oN 315 M UOPUOT YLION LU02) PIAII0II WO U) IsEIDY]
‘bedunoN| oot 00T usﬁaﬁneoga_ﬁaa.&_ uniuosaBuls  isTd
3u1) uj yBros0q 3yl 40 1531 13 Junq (1M S pue
.vsuatnskeusssaﬁsﬁassuczéJ ooy ooy U33J9 POOM uj uoeiado U Apeasie pueq 52yliH ‘yBnosoq]  auniuossaBuls |prd
31 ssoue pueq a8rey) 33RON 3BseY) Aeuad u; aBuey)
N ssaupsng
0003 0007 0003 0003 easy
{Asani1aq 294135) 2suznisayag V0 Medun/uopeusons soqum | o) | ox/stoz | stvioe | viseroe lesodoud Bupes g Anapupa sxnms/aresopeng

Ayjiqeuessns 1 aoelq - sjesodosd sBupnes




Page 29

{two0) 2 ypuaddy

vy
. o e $eT 8 LARTREI) JORY) (810,
83§AI3S UOREYNSUOD PUE SUOTEIHUNUNLOD,
weay a Apeded 3w onpas sy SUCREIUNWWOY)
3 Jo yom a o an mmBupessiul 002 oot oot 3 jo Aapeded pus 215 33 uj uoponpay
uew Pedw 'S3adpng pue ye3s awaaoxdun]
8iqeate |l o9 09 33198 pue aBueyd ‘G I1@ 4O Busienua) b
‘uonenssas ‘uonensiBay JR0A [ENPIAIPU JO LORONPOLQU|
FERIUI 03 Bussseaur) W) Yuys M 503 pajuswadwy siymrasug| € Supnojio} 1500 Bujsseaues uj UOPONPIs Ajayn Rpne e e
09 09 uonesiieuones Joddns Jepe1a.09g) epRRNRS
paBeusw aq jiim edu}
g "9pewW 3q UEd A Y R U uoRdINPaY
AsBuire| oot 00t S301n0saY UBWINg x
01 2yPads SI0IAIIS U] UORINDRS @ U} 1521 03 Apayy s esodosd sy e oo L OO SJPEN0D 8W £V
Pedwion] 65 3 3 138pha Bupasews [EA0 03 UORORPOH]  SUOESUMBIe)
"puads Buuen SQUIRIN ) VORSNPaI € Sueaw O5e| o i~ QaBpng S0u313ju00
U Aigmay 210w N1om 0} s3I2d Buppom SuBuep saajoay) jesodosd sy pue Bujureny saquBN SwpIA0 dnpay SWa1
uun ssausng
0003 000.3 0003 0003 ey
131100 23|ARS) BITULIOLAG L0 IIRCUI /UORRUIIO) SoLN. esodosd Suiaes p Asuapiyy
( e uf &) | ST/530Z | ST/PT0Z | vE/Etoe g 2 e3jaung foesopang
IANIXT JoY) - sjesodold sujaes




Page 30

14V dd

[ 343 seL | soL't senosey a3ea0dio) |830L
$32IN059) . . 1PUN0?) 3y} G} aWDU JYBIY €837 =
Bunspe wouy Jaw ag (M AyMIde paseasdu; 3y se paydadxe auoN| N3P || SIWN|OA 0) SasERLIU] - srensiBay]
S3NAIAS 1BWOYISN)
750d ) SpERH JUEISISSY 4230 A pasaacd aq o1 djoy| €9 s9 Augoa aouits Jo pean WSSV PIOH] 0 cyyausg “saruary v
i SBIAIDS JSWOISN)
pauiejujews S|9AS) 3JuBUWIOMAd]  SE SE 3} M31A2) pue suonI3dsu) Xey IUNGCI JINPUGD) pue syauag ‘sanuaay 11¢']
0} Y3noioq 3y uj 3IGOW Apeauje SInosas 350
S3IAIAS JBWOISNT)
~oeduy oz_ 0z 0z SINCY JO INO 403 SISOI [ENILIUOI JO UCHIN _uoz_ pue susauag ‘sanusAsy (42
*sassad0.d "SHuinES paasde
-31d Bur ay oy 1 3 ? 1]
1 s21npa0sd pasiaas 0} ‘vonesiuesio ayy ssooe ‘uj Ang aanbaa | O5F ost vum_.ﬁ.”__“uuc._wsu«: vu__“v._“t_ﬁ u““ﬂ.._ m&%ﬂuﬂ a3ueuyy Resodio) Ty
*SjualP Aq 3dtApe |e83) uo puewap Jo UORINPI
*SBUIABS 2SOU) JOA(RP 0} JOPIO U] ISEIIIIP O} SBY HJOM o cze papadxa pue ‘suap Aq andu) je8a) Jnoyym - P
1e83) JO BWN{OA 3y "ISBIDU] M HJoMm [eF3) uo 3w punosewmny N0 PajIed aq ued Jeym pue pasinbal sy }1om
Yeym Bursnuolid Aq panajyde ‘uopanpas yeys
sBuiAes 10§ payRuap] UBWITEURI ¥STU B UPNY SSO12€ SBUIAES
sease ay} uo Bupuddap paaye aq Aew sassad0:d jeuonesadQ i oy Aouapyse sayuny Auap) 0y 3131 jeussiu| sty pue ypny 6Y
*Seale ¥Su Y3 UO SNI0} O) MIAR] JApUN N = IBRUOD HIOMIWELY BURSIKD oY) T =
3day aq | uejd ypne - paydajje 3q Jou M sassacosd jeuogesadp wouy paind0d sAEp UPNE JRUIBIY) U} LORINPaY
ETV=))
‘PIV3YE 3q 30U [IIM |PUNO)
oSt T 3dueINsy) papuny Ajjeusai 3y3 03 pasnbal iy pue ypny
ay3 JsujeBe swiep 3duLINSU) Ijpuey 03 535532010 [euoyesad 05 B N = 2.”._ = Asty pue ypn 0
"jouned ay) ssoude sassadasd padueyd aunbas uml oY oy Suggers u SB..__EN ; s.n = ,_ Eznhz m a__cam :“ WBWAINI0g 9y
s)uawied 10| |BENUBW §O UORINPal
‘33ueweonad uodn 1oedun Aew uoponpasayy] sp St {q) '3 sesse202d pue swaysAs Juawainload IUBWRINI0IY sy
-3 40 uoResBa| (e) 03 anp saUPYS JysAUD
¥w33pnq
sap Pyun
PONpaJ Sii 139U O} PAMIIAR] 3q |JIM S[BA3| 3IAIAS _aneu._o_ s L b “__ a v
auoN| 00T 001 SIPBAUO0) 11 JO MaIA3I BujoB-uQ) 1) £y
*S3B0I0uUYIR
auoNl o0 {00s) 00S doyysap j0 femauas 2iminy 03 paedoye ni ) 4]
133pnq 3y seah 3U0 J0j ANUIAIL BAOWDY
“PWWIEIZ0]] |emaudy
pasnbal aq Jou |jim Bumosiog jeguapnid pue
006 006 a uf 9 3u | waunsnipe upueuy -y
138pnq J3pun paJaA||ap a4 jim dwiwesBold |emaudy 3innasesu] .goﬂa"”“bmmt __m._u«u.”:a "gto_uea w.wchﬂ.“ pe I -V/N 4]
sun ssausng
000,3 0003 0003 esodosd
(AsoagaQ 231A136) 3aueuuIosad uo Pedinj/uopeuuojuy b._:&_ @01 st/vroz | vr/evoz [ 3upes 3 Avpyy3 €3IV RS /ANeI0DUG

S324n0s3Y 3je10di0) - sjesodoad sduiaes

{1w02) Z Mpuaddy

A0




Page 31

£ xipuaddy

Al

001’9 ov9 096 00S'y IV10L
0 0 0 0 mﬂu..:Omwm wum._onuou
0 (ot€) (1] £ 0 B0IAIBS S,3ARNIXT JaIY)
00T 0 0 001 Avjiqeusessng 13 aseyg
0 0 0 0 SIINIBS S, udpyIYy)
0009 0s6 0S9 (10) 28 Suisno} 3 sYnpy

000.3 000,73 000,3 000.3

jelog 91/S10Z | ST/¥10Z | ¥T/ET0Z

U0j3e13pIsuo0d 10} sjesodoud Juaunsanuj




Page 32



uoNd3|3 |1PUNO) |e307 ST/HT 404 Suipuny

suona3|3

3JIA13S

S, 2AIN%9X3 Ja1y)

‘uonie(siga) Buiuueld ui saSueyd jeuoippe pue syafosd
uonjesauaday pue Suluueld wWouj puewap ul Yyimo.s ayl aSeuew

oo1

oot

I'8 wsi|e307 03 anp jJom parejas Suiuueld
pooysnoqysiau 4o 3503 paseaudu|

34d

Auiqeureisns 13 aseyq

pue 10y wsie’oq 01 anp syudawadinbas Asoiniels paseasdul J99w o)
3
)
D)

01 Aanp a81eydsip 01 PUNo) ay) Suimoye ‘s3a| 101935 aleaud Ayjenb 0 (oot) (oot) 008 U0NUIA3.d SSBUSSI[IWIOY - SBAIIUIIU| | SY Suisnoy Y
poo3 03 553238 104 SPJO|PUB| J01I3S 31eAlid 0} SPAIUSIUI JO UOISIAOLG

“8uipung aJe) yijeaH Suinunuo) wouy palajsues) S)U|P yiesH ; - SjuaWIsSSasseay alen)

[eIU3Al pue sailjIqesig Suluiea JO SIS0 aJed Paseadul 3yl puny o oov'e (002) 00s°e Suinunuo) SHN wous Suisue s1s00 asey SUNpy v

*S1edA € J9A0 e N
é 01 S,UaJpjIy) Wwo.

U3JpIIYd €T JO [2301 V¥ "sdN0IS 3N || "9T-E£TOT W 8T Ydeas Jo jooyds| 009'z 0S€'1 0SZ'1T 0 uonisuen r_ 5 Mwum_ MM:M .._o w_.m”_uu Emm synpy v

anea| Aayy uaym 3jdoad SunoA Jo spaau aie3 ayl puny o] - uopIsuesy i 19jdosd A 104 51507 243
Suisnoy 13 synpy
(rdue| 0003 | 0003 | 0003 000.3 (239 sid)) uonesynsng o I
wedwt “3-3) ¢panatyse aq |Im S2WOIN0 1BYM / ¢papaau siyr st Aym|  jeroy at/s1oz | st/vioz vI/€t102 3 JU3WISaAU| Jo asn pasodoud v 2dintag/ajeiona.q

u02) g xipuaddy

U013EeI3pISUO0 10} Sjesodo.d Juawisanu)




Page 34



Page 35

¥ xipuaddy

NI L'ACIVE

“Juines
M3u e se pasodoud s1 yaym ‘puncd 3P wiyam ‘puads
puads juawdopaap aojasas pue @31 ‘@8ueyd uo P3uoIssiwwWod dutuesy Buueys uo passnaoy
puads Buisyenuao Aq panaiyoe aq Auo ues sSumes ] (os) oS SBY oM Jentu) “Jayo 1Is qO 2j3uls e Joy 1300 z
J3yung Auy “sysod juedea 8uny Jou Aq pue 353104 P00] 03 s3yea13y) pue GO Jo peay 3y3 aseys 0y
weyyem yam sadines o Suieys ayy Y3nosyy iesodoid e s1 513 - 4 yum S821AJ3S QO 3seyg
P3J3A3p uaaq 3Aey Buines jo )OOTF 23ep o)
s3ujnes
Mau se 0335 aue 3say ) “wea) suopeduNWWO) 002 00z siegeuew Sumn) ssosy I
3Y1 sS04 SUORINPaI Jers pue saouapyyo Aq OM} snid 321A13s Jo peay auo INpay
P3J3A13p 3q jjim Buines siy3 Jey) pasodoid mou 1)
SaANNJAX3 Jayy)
$324nosay
oSt {oot) | (oge) 08S A
'ST-YT0T Ui pajuawajdun aq 03 uonn|os,
8u1dioAuI-3 “dv'S INO JO uoneuswaldun 3y} Jaye
g 00T I wea) sjqeAed sunodoe u) uoiINpP BWRINI01
PSUORJe 3q M Inq ‘PT-ETOZ Ui Jew aq Jou ym| O o8} - ! - d .
SauaRYe Suylers ySnosyp 198png u uoonpay
"Pasodoud se ajqissod Bujaes ost oSt s1qap soueuLg a3es0di09 ml%
SIY3 Spew jJou aAey sjaAd} UOII}j0d 3Wodu! JuaIN) Snoauejjaosiw o uoiI3)j0d 1gap aseasou;
‘0198 3Y)
3s1!qe1sap pinod pue Apes 003 aq pinom tT/ET02
‘pacuapiadxa Sujaq jns ase TToz Ul 34NPruIsal Y45 "M3INIY suopdung
uedyIusis ayl Jo s19aY9 ay) *sBuines sT/pT02 Y10 0 (0£2) 0€e Hoddns 3sod pioddns 9JUBUY MIINDY Fueul seiedioy 4
apis3uoje usyeapun aq 03 M3jAa1 Buyyers 3j3uis
€ 3|geud 03 ST/1T0Z 03 3jyoid-31 03 uBwannbay
43440 NIAIBS JBWI0ISND Yy jo sa31ss Jowarsmy
M3IA31 BY) WOy pansap sBuines o palesodioouy 0 (oot) 001 313u3d (83 jo uonesieusa® 10 Suueys Pue s1yausg ‘sanusnay 1
Pue 9T/ST 03 ¥T/€T wouy pajyoud-a1 3q oy,
$924nosay ajesodio)
000.3 0003 000.3 0003 easy
aduey 105 uoseay esodosd Su Aouay
oL | 9t/st0z | st/voz | vi/etoz i it s /arelonaig
sSuines P3343v-344 01 SAuALINIIANIV




Page 36

¥ xipuaddy

dead V GIN\J

| 28 | (og2) | (e62'r) | wos'T | | WiO0L =
43 0 (296) 66 Avpqeuieisns
pue 32eid [eyoi
"30IAJ9S 3Y) Ul Spew udaq dAeyY sSuines $,343U3)
annewsayy “Aem S| ul panaiyde aq 10u jm Buies| ¢ Z€ | aoinias sowoisny 1e s150) Awinoas uo sBumes| OISO €
‘ST/¥10¢ 03 paddys
aq Suines 15anbay 'suonda)iod ApySiunoy Jowojjosf 0 (z12) e PERUO  unuoisepus | 2
“pul ‘u1 pappaq sey PeIU0I 33u0 3|qissod Suires B1I09A JO BuLIOYUOW PeRuo) 3INPIY
*sJeal aunny
Sed
et e e ued uonepouoe
Auadoad ay3 Jo ued ABUALIND St YIIYM X00ST 0 (osz) cm\.. posiadi ySnoayy sduiaes auming|  Auadouqd jesodio) T
pue uopEpoOWWOoIdY 32140 U1 UONINPIY
Aq poys jjey aiep 031 paunuap! sduies ‘Japulewas
ay) Jo4 "paAaiyde Buiaq €1/ZT0T 40} Sulnes
Aupqeusesng
pue adejd
002 {oeT) 0 OEE SIANJXJ J3NYD (810}
. - n
ST/¥T0Z J9A0 9T/STOT 03 3jyoiday “puads T T
pue $324n053J JudtdojaASp 32IAIBS pue adueyd A e e e
- I |
‘Buiures) Buisiienauad Aq paasiyoe aq 03 padu 0 {o8) 08 5442 34040 03 Wi [ AARIe Juawwdoreaag 1800 £
SUORINPaJ J3YUNJ AUy "JMET YUM paJeys mou s T ey T (T T R e
s ay) (WSZ'TI) YT/ETOZ - TL/TTOT J9A0 %0L b ’ :
JO UOIINP3J 193PNQ & PAISAIIP SeY 3JIAIDS Y|
000.3 000,3 000,3 000.3 easy
a8ueyd 10§ uosed, esodosd 3 A
W 103 UOSEM| o301 | 9t/sT0z | Su/tvoz | vi/etoz : Ll b asiases /ares00010

s3uineg paaidy-aid 0} Sjudwpuawy

ALt




Page 37 Appendix 5

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2013/14 to 2015/16

1 Summary

1.1 The report makes recommendations in respect of the Housing Revenue Account
MTFP and capital programme 2013-18.

1.2 It also makes recommendations about HRA rent increases, service charges, and the
future maintenance and improvements programme, on the basis of which overall
financial assumptions for 2013-18 are recommended.

1.3 The report advises Cabinet of the current position in respect of the 30 Years’
Business Plan.

2 Other options considered

2.1 The Council is required to approve an HRA budget and Capital Programme for
2013-14 and to set rent and service charges for the year. The report outlines the
considerations the Cabinet should take into account and the options available to

them in doing so.

3 Background information

3.1 Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, on 1 April 2012 the previous Housing
Revenue Account subsidy system was abolished and replaced by a system of self-

financing.

3.2 Under the new system housing authorities no longer receive HRA subsidy but are
allowed to retain all rental income and make decisions on how to spend it to meet

their local housing needs.

3.3 The introduction of Self Financing was accomplished with a final debt settlement
between Central Government and Local Authorities. Although most authorities were
required to take on additional debt, Haringey had £234 of its housing debt paid off.

3.4 The Council must set a balanced HRA budget each year, using rent and other
revenue collected to manage and maintain its housing stock and to pay all interest
and financing costs associated with its housing debt

4 Rent increases

4.1 Under the self-financing regime rents are the main source of income for the HRA
and Cabinet continue to be required to make decisions annually on the level of
increases. At the February meeting, Cabinet will be asked to agree a
recommendation to Council.

4.2 Forseveral years it has been the Council's policy to set rent increases in
accordance with government policy following the rent restructure guidance. This
policy is based on gradually increasing council housing rents to that they converge
with typical rent levels of other social landlords.

4.3 Although the Council is not required to follow rent restructuring, the calculations
underpinning the self financing model assume that it will do so and it will not be
possible to meet the investment needs of Haringey's stock without achieving this
level of income. Setting lower rents will reduce the income available to the HRA and

A 15



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 38

restrict the funding available for housing services and capital investment.

Conversely, although the Council has some freedom to set rent levels slightly above
rent restructuring, in previous years the DWP has used the limit rent mechanism to
restrict the Housing Benefit subsidy payable to councils who levy excessive rent
increases. Clear guidelines of how this will work in 2013-14 have not yet been
announced. However the introduction of Welfare Reform and the economic climate
are likely also to make it difficult to collect large rent increases from tenants.

It is therefore recommended that Cabinet continues to follow their established policy
with target rent increases for 2013-14 reflecting the September 2012 RPI
announcement (2.6%) and convergence in April 2016.

The exception to this will be where a tenancy comes to an end and the property is
relet to a new tenant. It is recommended that in such cases the rent should be

raised immediately to the target rent thereby achieving convergence in advance of
the main stock. The amount of additional income raised will be dependent on the
properties that become vacant in year but is estimated to be in the region of £62k.

The average weekly dwelling rents with caps and limits applied according to the
Govermnment’s restructuring policy will increase by £4.19 (4.45%) from £94.04 to
£98.23. There will be differing increases across dwellings as set out below:

Forecast weekly dwelling rents for 2013-14 with caps and limits applied

Number of Number of Min Rent Max Rent Average
Bedrooms Properties Rent
0 144 63.49 108.86 79.40
1 5,631 53.69 131.51 84.03
2 5,437 75.64 140.91 98.19
3 4,029 71.69 146.45 112.83
4 621 83.38 165.13 127.74
5 102 98.98 162.67 147.36
6 11 128.30 171.04 155.54
7 2 130.23 166.29 148.26
8 1 168.22 168.22 168.22
Grand Total 15,978 53.69 171.04 98.23

Percentage increase in weekly dwelling rents for 2013-14 with caps and limits

applied

No of bedrooms | Minimum Maximum Average
% % %

Bedsit 1.3 6.5 4.8

1 1.0 7.1 44

2 2.2 5.9 4.5

3 2.1 6.1 4.4

3+ 2.6 5.6 4.3

All dwellings 1.0 7.1 4.5

A lb



4.8

4.9

Page 39

Range of changes

Amount Number of properties
Less than £4.00 7092 :
Between £4.00 and £5.00 5920
Between £5.00 and £6.00 2741
Between £6.00 and £7.00 225
Total 15,978

Were the Council not to implement the full increase the loss of rent would be £810k
per annum for each 1% of reduced increase. This would reduce the revenue
contribution to the capital funding available for the Decent Homes programme and
is not recommended for that reason.

Alternatively, if the Council wished to raise additional rental income, Homes for
Haringey have identified a way to raise an addltional £490k that is not far out of line
with the rent restructuring model and the limit rent. This would ensure that all rents
increased by RPI + 0.5% + £2 except where a property was already at the maximum
rent for its size. Under this scenario, most rent increases would be in the range
3.1% to 6%. The additional income would be available for investment in the decent
homes programme or in additional services for tenants such as the cyclical
maintenance programme.

4.10 Over 70% of the Council's tenants currently have at least part of their rent paid by

benefits.

4.11 For financial planning purposes only at this stage the Cabinet are asked to agree the

inclusion of the rent increases detailed in paragraph 5.7 above.

§ Service charges

5.1

5.2

In addition to rents, tenants need to pay separate service charges for specific
services that they receive. Charges are currently made for the following services.

o Concierge services
o Caretaking

o Grounds maintenance
o Street sweeping

o Light and power

o District heating

o Water

The Council's policy has been to set charges to match budgeted expenditure unless
this would be an increase of more than the limits used in rent restructuring in which
case charges are increased by RP| + 0.5%. For 2013-14 this is equal to 3.1%.
Except in unusual circumstances it has not been the policy to compensate for under

ALY



5.4

55

5.6

5.7

Page 40

or over recovery in previous years. However charges will be adjusted for future
years to avoid its continuance.

5.3 Based on current policy the following adjustments to charges are recommended:

Recommended Forecast Forecast Forecast
Increase Income Income Additional
Charge 2013/14 before | 2013/14 after Income
review recommended
changes
% £ £ £

Concierge 1.8% 1,475,700 1,531,600 55,900

Grounds Maintenance 2.8% 1,212,200 1,269,900 57,700

Caretaking 3.1% 2,165,700 2,276,800 111,100

Street Sweeping 2.5% 1,539,300 1,630,100 9,200

Communal Lighting -29.5% 1,254,800 901,600 -353,200

District Heating 8.0% 371,600 409,300 37,700

Integrated Reception

Service (Digltal TV) 0.0% 347,000 387,100 40,100

Estates Road

maintenance 2.2% 219,500 228,700 9,200
| Water n/a - 64,700 64,700

Total Charges

including Water

Rates 4.7% 5,401,300 5,664,900 263,600

Forecast additional Income based on number of Tenants x increase in charge x 98% (Recovery rate-
i.e. 2% void and bad debts)

Reductions are recommended in Street Sweeping and Light and Power where the
current level of charge is resulting in an over-recovery. For other service charges

increases are recommended at the lower of 3.1% or full cost recovery.

Service charges other than District Heating charges are eligible for Housing Benefit.
(District Heating charges are for the supply of heat from a central supply to
individual properties. As such they are not considered to be part of the rental cost.)

A new charge has been proposed for bin and chute cleaning at £0.15 per week for
relevant properties.

Homes for Haringey have been requested to give further consideration to other
service charges that can be made in general needs or Sheltered Housing. If new
proposed charges are identified these will be included in the final HRA rent setting
report in February.

6 Revenue Budget and MTFP 2013-16

6.1

6.2

As part of the Council's budget strategy to generate efficiency savings, Homes for
Haringey have been asked to reduce the portions of their Company Budget within
their full control, that is excluding charges made by the Council, by 5% which
equates to £1.787m.

In 2013-14 the bulk of this saving (£1.5m) will be made through a review of Housing
Management services that is expected to increase productivity resulting in improved
services, greater consistency of standards and decreased costs. The balance of

A8



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 41

savings, £255k, will be met from back office services. Transitional costs and
redundancies (38 FTE estimated) will be met from HRA reserves (subject to value for
money consideration.)

Homes for Haringey have identified £652k savings for 2014-15 across a range of
services and are developing further proposals to meet the rest of the target
(£1.135m to be found.)

The net budget for thé managed account which comprises most of the HRA income
sources is estimated to realise increased net income of £3.6m arising largely from
rent increases discussed above and additional service charges. However this is
offset by the need to make an increased provision for bad debts. The level of bad
debt has been increasing over recent years and this is expected to worsen following
Welfare Reform Act changes including the benefits cap, the under occupation
penalty and the payment of housing support to the tenant rather than the landlord
under Universal Credit.

The retained Account shows an expenditure reduction of £0.7m arising mainly from
the reduction in the Management Fee payable to Homes for Haringey (-£1.787m).
However £425k of costs for Broadwater Farm Leisure Centre and ASBAT have been
transferred to the HRA from the General Fund following a review of charges between

accounts.
There is also new investment growth for activity to support the HRA Estate Renewal

work (see below.) This is made up of a contribution to the Regeneration team of
£225k for HRA specific activity and £550k one off costs for feasibility studies and

other development work.

7 HRA Capital Programme

7.1

7/

7.3

7.4

7.5

In recent years the Council’s programme for maintaining its estate has depended
mainly on subsidy determinations and supported borrowing. The capital programme
for 2011-12 is £34.2m of which £16.3m is for a planned programme of works to
maintain the stock condition.

In addition there is £15.5m earmarked for Decent Homes, funded from £6.45 Decent
Homes Backlog Grant from the GLA and £9m from the HRA revenue surplus.

A further £2.45m is for specific capital projects including loft conversions and the
development of Supported Living Schemes. This is funded from HRA internal

sources.

Following the introduction of Self Financing, Council Officers and Homes for
Haringey are developing a 30 year business plan that will set out the proposed use
of HRA borrowing capacity and future income streams in order to improve and
enhance the condition of the housing stock and support wider Council priorities and
Regeneration aims. This is a complex piece of work and is not due to be finished
until after the budget is finalised. It will be reported to Cabinet in the first half of next
year. For this reason the later two years of the capital programme should be
regarded as indicative only.

In order to ensure maximum flexibility for the Council in advance of completion of

A9



7.6

7.7

Page 42

the Stock Options Appraisal it is proposed that the capital programme for 2013-14
relies solely on internally generated resources . It is not planned to draw on the
limited borrowing capacity nor on any capital receipts.

A proposed programme with commentary totalling £34.2m is included as Appendix
6. Funding Is proposed as follows:

Funding Source £m
Decent Homes Grant 6.5
Internally generated funds 27.7
TOTAL 34.2

Should any of the works cover leasehold properties the costs will be recoverable
from the leaseholders and will not be a charge on the Council’s resources.

ALO



[soz'ov — Jes £op [8167Se [sozzL Jost [oo6 [Soz'oy — Jeeiz 53 ZV6'EC —RIGeUIEISNS pue o3eid o]
0 [ 0 lo lo josi |05 los 0S Aieaeq euded] 1o
0 0s2 0 lo 0 jose 10 lo 0Se uosiesewsidus ueld JSISEN - yed eue) umog
0 G9 lo lo 0 | 5 lo lo 59
0 00E'S 0 lo 0 jooe’s — foore loo12 00L't
0 00% 0 lo [ loor lo loot 008
0 002’} 0 o jo looz'L 000"t o 002
0 oSy lo lo 0 josv 0S| fost oSt
fo 000'S lo {0 0 Jooo's 005 loos loc0’y
fo looc’t lo lo lo 1o0z'L 00% |ooy 00V
0 sy lo lo lo Isiz'y ooz losZ2 A 3
0 lose’e o o lo josee losz losz 052 SOUIiiNg OUNOY JO eouBUBYUE % Jledoy| L1
0 0 looo’e lo jo 1009°E {0 lo 009°E 8jUBD UMO], UBAID) POOM - UL|  OF
0 0 lovv 0 0 sty {0 lo b sebpug - ull 6
0 0 logs 0 0 jooL 0 jo josz a5UEeuBjURH PEoY ud- Ll 8
0 lo |oot 0 0 JooL o lo {oot vodsuel| 8007 - 1| 2
0 0 leeie 0 0 leevs o lo [ecte [9ARI] ISURWIS/POOWNOGUBION/SIOPII0D - iL| 9
lo 0 fo loot 0 —jo91 lo lo foot S
0 881 lo [0 {006 18222 o [822°1 joos 2
S22 0 [82071 {0 0 Jés€t o o feset 3
lo 0022 9292 0 0 |sce’s £8y'L j2¥S l962s _Bupjied pue AIQISSa00V Wed PUSHeqUINGEON] 2
8€2 |oos 561 0 0 E0E [0 0 10t uogeseusBoy UEYUSHOL - PEOH UDIH oyl Uo MaID| |
% qeuieISng pue eoeid|
000.3 0003 _ 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 I
801 fdjadey sajpog Aienon | ssepjoyeses| (ezof 8L/S102 | SWrioz | vieLo2 swiayds jeyde) jo osuz,.oz ‘194
uopdes | jeyded | vipwouy | (euoneN | siedojersg 1wbpng | 16png | 3ebpng
J0 esn Suppuny | oy) wouy | syeapd woiy leulbpo | ewbuo | jewybuo
eyded suen | uopnqyuod eAfedipYl | aaedipy) | pesodoay
lended 3 spueIn
sif £} adinos Gupund jeol] bpng ainypusdx3 pouusid 8101 9L/5L0Z O} /6102 swweiBoud jeyded yeiq)

91/51L02 0} ¥1/€1.02 3wweibouiy jende) 1ounog Asbuuey yeiqg

S Ayrpvedd |,

AZl



Page 44

[ee¥'SE Je2o't €60 002 ZilIe 96V'SE___[0se'9 __ [si6'8  |8cc0c 51d0ad BUNOA % USIPHYD |01
€€0C 002 e 962 5 _8— 9 8128 8evel (a+o+g) 358 Bupnx3 |E01
|
0 0 €929 1282 |€95E lose’t viv'e 1ey0r-qns (@)
0 o _m&.m LTE _m-mﬁ ) ¥90'L Aousbunuo) euneiboid] 66
0 0 loov'e oo |oos joo8 008 SisoQ Kieajjog ewuseiBoid]  ge
0 0 1059t loss'y 055 L_ow.m 0SS reuded peAoaeq| e
lo 0 182'C 681 008 |sos 1851 80UBUGIUE 19SS pauliEid [BI01-GRS §_
[0 To 001 [oo 001 loot 00t suogeidepe swoH Jaie| ot
0 lo l682 l682 0 Is 182 sepesBdn eimonnsesu] [eoUPeE|  SE
0 10 |009 1009 002 looe looz SIUBWIBOUBLUS USLHIDY I00WS] 16
0 0 c6L’) 000 00S 00S 000°L SHIOM UOIPUCD BAIDBR) PUE POUIBId|  £6
¥ JuSwIoAcIdul] 195! .83'._,..85_._
002 160721 losz’ee (28071 0959 EEVVL ewweiBold 100495914 pue Aleilid [E101-Gng @_r
foot 009 [002s [ “looo 000’2 punj uoisuedxe aoeid ildnd Arewid|  eg
lo | EN [208E o lovi's losse vorsuedx3 Arewuq - swnoqem|  1e
o vel b v8L'E 0 vel't losv't uorsuedx3 Al - wowpg| 06
foo1 961 9681 0 leis leset uoisuedx] Aiewyd - eipuexely] 6e
10 12 12 0 1o 2 uoisuedxe Aieiodws) - pesuspes|  gg
0 3 106 0 lo 108 uogiesywepow Aueqmiyl /2
0 {00S loos 0 1o loos 8Inasip JO 1S00 enuaAy sapoyy| oz
0 | A E7X7 28 [zt 3 34 € 01 uoisuediy enusAY Sapoud| g
0 €92 | 99T 0 0 992 Ol uuey soempeosg] vz
suiiieiBo.d 100495-3id pue Aigwpd
0 VI3 002¢  [00C 002 008°L ewweiioid IS 1%101-GNS (V)|
o LZE [008"L 002 looz joor’t SHOM 8pA9IN| €2
0 00% [oov 0 0 jooy ©RIU0) JSW 101
eSS
U 201A1eS §,81d00d Bunoy » uaipiyo
000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 |
ssopjoyesest| (D)3osou) | Iet0) oS0z | swvioz | viELoe swiaydsg jende Jo ewenN| oON ‘Joy
@ stadojeasq | sjusugiedeq 1ebpng | 6png | 1e6png
ajeApd wold | waleAos) teuibuo | meuiBuo | feuibuo
UORNGIIUOD | (B WOy eAnedjpY] | BARR9iPY] | pesodosd
g swern [sweso jepden
(s1X'g) 83unos Bujpund (10, 185phg ainiipuedx3 peuutid 101 91/S102 01 v1/E102 swuriBoid euded yeig|

91/5102 01 ¥ 1/E10T dwweibold [epde) jounog AsbupieH yesq

ALY



Page 45

[eo1™® Toos'e 0 805'C [801°9 9E0T 9602 9802 BujSnon PUe SUNPY (8101
00S'L loos’t 0 0 Joos’L 00S 005 00S seniedosd AJdws - eseyoIng Alosindwod| |y
X2 00L°C 0 8052 809V 965’1 9€S'L 9gs’| Sefiedald PeumQ JOUNo) UON Ui SuoiBidepy J0feN| o
UISNOH pue s3n
000.3 0003 0003 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 T
[T sidjesey suRID Y0 (d)aos lesoL 9sIoZ | swwioz | veLoe swayds (ended J0 sweN| oN ‘joH
jended 30 esn au)) suswpedaq wbpng | webpng | 1e6png
WSBUWLIBAOD) feuibuo | |eulbpo | reuibuo
enue) wouy aapedpu) | sapesipu) | pasodoid
swes [eded
(s52ak ) acumos Bujpung €101 ng aINypuadxs pauue]d (€101 91/SLOZ 01 v1/EL0Z swweiboid jeyded yeig

91/5102 0} ¥1/£102 swwesboid jepde) [1ouno) Asbuuey yesq

A2



Page 46

[}
-

|vio'ss

[6€€Z 8YE'SY St [1e6°eE [6EEZEL  [6IEZY  [s19'ss  [eoewe RUna39Y Snuaney BUISROH) 660iAI08 BUISHON 6101
|sgse _ Jo 989°€ 0 lo |o89'e 0 1989'¢ lo SHoMm reuded o] 65
|oos 0 009 0 {0 [o09 002 |ooe looe SuaweAcdun owis3| s
_.Wem.q- 0 0051 0 lo loos’y 00S |00s Joos AT 76
052 lo 052 0 1] los2 0 lo lose SUOISIBAUOD 01| 95
jostt o 0Sk'1 0 lo losi™s 0 jo | (TN | s
[ooe lo 00€ 0 lo |ooe 0 10 |ooe sapunpoddo uswido@Aeq]  pg
jose lo ¥0g o lo jose 0 [0 jose WwowAo|dwz/SUCKIBAUGD| 66
[oos loot 0 0 lo loot 0 0 loot SR P
[s21’s [eL1's 0 o lo |s41’s 0S.'} 0SL'} fiz9°1 15
009°c |oo9'e 0 0 ) j009'¢ l00c’L 00c'L looc’s suogeidepy pue sply| 0
81618 l6cE0b 859/ 0 [1e6°eE [8t6"18_ [se60c 08'SE __ |005'G1 SOWoH 1We%eq] 6%
125’y 12S'Y 0 0 {0 j1es'y 0St'| 1291 losy*s SHOM PIOA BAISUST| gy
00221 oozt 0 0 lo | A T X 0SLY ooy siredoy of v
005 loos 0 0 lo loos 001 looe 00¢ SYOM Inprus| oy
[evse |evs’e 0 0 lo levs'e 1812 181'2 181°2 siwewaroidwi yn|— op
|oos’or foos01 0 0 lo |00s'ot oos® 00S°S 005t Sifedey Jofew pue Siusweceidew Jefiog| by
jooe 00€ 0 0 [0 Jooe . 001 001 001 feAowsy soiseqsy| oy
losZ’e 0SLE 0 0 0 0S°€ 052 | 0Sc't 0Se & (D13 pue [BOREVOS|  op
{{VHH) Wnosoy snuaaey BuISNOK) saoimies Busnon
000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 I
f©j01  |(vdw) souemoqy VHH sajpog (0)aos 1ejo) oLSl0z | siwLoz | vieloz wayos [eyded j0 sweN|ON jou
Sijedey Jofeyy | wosgBupueurd | v wosy  |ouy) sjuswyedog w6png | jebpng | jeBpng
/(4um) sasesoy Bujpungy jeyde) | uswwsason reubuo | reuwbuo | jeuwBug
ssfedoy sofew fequed wouy aAedIpY| | eagedypuy) | pesodoid
wouy Bupoueuyy sjuray) jeyden
(844 ¢) sunog Bujpun j=0) g ainy pauueld j510) 91/5102 0} ¥1/6102 swweibord [euded yeig

91/510Z O v1/EL0T dwweiBold jende) |1ounog Aabuuey yeiqg

ALY



Page 47

jooz'e loos’L jooo"L joos’s 8181010a513-8501D B IAANIAXF JOIYD JUMS|SSY ‘SIAUN0SIY 811010 130

loos’t loos Joos 00S

SOUBUBUIBW - 80Bfed @ WEd BIpUBXalY] 29 |

uopessuebes - adefeg 9 x._ua Se:wxm.( 19 |

pung jessusn
woi4 Bugsusuig

lost'L lose lose 0S8
0SL 0Se 0Se 052
T 7% - 9]810]581{(}-5501D 3 GA[NIOXT JHYD ssu.o& 53
0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
sidieden 1ewl o1/S102 | Sswyioz | vLELOZ
feuded 30 asn wbpng | webpng | 1e6png

jeuibuo | 1ewBuo | 1ewbuo
aARBdpUY| | aaRedipuy] | pesodosd

swayas [elides Jo aweN|‘oN jay

{sak g) 22no0s Bujpuny (2101 yebpng ainjjpuadxy pauueld €10

91/5102 0} ¥1/£102 dwwesboig jepde) |1ouno) Asbuuey yesq

91/S102 O} ¥1/E102 swwesBoid jeuded yeig

A)5



AL

Page 48



Page 49

HRA 2013-14 Capital Programme Commentary

3.2

3.3

4.2

4.3

Mechanical and Electrical — £1.25m
Approximately half of the budget will be spent on the re-wiring of
landlord’s electrical supply to blocks and the other half on planned
maintenance and repairs to existing door entry systems.

Asbestos Removal — £0.100m

This budget funds the testing, removal and management of asbestos
containing materials (ACMs) identified during responsive repair works.
This work is essential to enable responsive repairs work to be
completed safely and ensure that ACMs are safely managed in homes
and communal areas. Sometimes where appropriate, the work is
carried out by sealing or encasing the asbestos, rather than removing

it.

This budget funds the replacement of boilers, together with major
repairs such as the replacement of heat exchangers, on a reactive
basis.

Although a boiler has an expected life of 15 years, many boilers are
considerably older than this and should be replaced. Modem energy
efficient boilers that Homes for Haringey is now installing have a life
expectancy of only 12 years.

The proposed budget is broadly consistent with advice received from
Homes for Haringey that an annual budget of £4m be provided to
support a planned approach to boiler replacement.

|= im

This budget funds the replacement of lifts that have reached the end
of their useful life. Lifts have an expected life of between 15 and 20
years, and lift replacement programmes require long lead-in periods
because of the specialist nature of the work and the bespoke
requirements of each lift.

There are 142 lifts in the Council’'s housing stock. Currently
approximately 60 lifts are identified for renewal. Each of these lifts is
more than 20 years old, and several are significantly older.

In recent years the lift replacement programme has not been keeping
pace with obsolescence causing considerable inconvenience to
residents. The regular lift servicing programme has identified the
need to replace more lifts in future years to ensure continued service
for residents. The budget was increased in 12-13 to help clear the
backlog and this higher level of funding will continue into 13-14.

Structural Works ~ £0.600m
A3



5.1

7.2

9.2

10.

10.1

11.

Page 50

This budget funds essential structural works including, for example,
underpinning, concrete repairs and brickwork repairs.

Capitalised Repairs - £4.000

This budget funds capital works (such as kitchen renewal, bathroom
renewal and the installation of new central heating systems) that are
carried out, as part of the responsive repairs programme, to renew
items that are beyond economic repair. Repairs to void properties
account for a significant amount of expenditure within this budget.
The budget has been reduced in 2013-14 in line with expected
expenditure.

Extensive Void Works - £1.650m

This budget funds the repair and improvement of void properties that
require major works before they can be re-let.

The proposed budget has increased from £1.350 in 2012-13 partly to
deal with the impact of the reduction in the Decent Homes programme
and the need to focus on the extemal fabric and services. As a result
kitchen and bathroom replacements in void properties, which would
previously have been part of the Decent Homes programme, must
now be funded separately.

Professional Fees - £1.671m

This budget funds the professional fees for quantity surveying and
other professional advice and support to the programme.

Decent Homes - £15.5m

The GLA has allocated Decent Homes backlog grant of £6.45m in
2013-14 to make an estimated 359 homes decent. It is proposed that
an additional £9m is allocated for 2013/14 from HRA internal
resources.

A separate report is due to be presented to Cabinet in December
recommending agreedment of a detailed programme. The programme
will again be focused on making the extemal fabric of all our stock
wind and weatherproof but also includes essential boiler renewal and

rewiring.
This demand-led budget funds the adaptation of council homes and

the provision of disabled facilities for council tenants and members of
their household.

fx1€



Page 51

11.1 This project allows for the installation of low cost but high impact

12.
121

12.2

13.
13.1

18.2

14.
14.1

14.2

measures, including loft/cavity wall installation and central heating
controls, and provides for start up / matched funding to attract
additional investment from other funders.

Conversions and Worklessness - £0.250m

The aim of this project is to identify innovative ways of making best
use of existing council owned assets to maximise affordable housing
in the borough and assist in tackling worklessness in the borough with
the recruitment of work placements.

A small grant of £46k has been provided by the GLA to support this
scheme so the net call on HRA resources is £204k

This is a project to invest in our housing estates in a way that provides
new housing (both for market sale and social rent), brings back into
use derelict and under-used parcels of land; contributes towards the
creation of mixed and balanced communities; and provides training
opportunities for local people.

Land agreements will be entered into with developers and registered
providers for them to build on infill sites of HRA land that have
development potential. The value in the land is used by the Council to
invest in the development with a contractual provision that the
developer transfers a proportion of the completed units to council
ownership to be let at social rent as council housing; and agrees to
share its developer's profit to provide a capital receipt in respect of
any units sold on the open market.

Infill - £1.150m

This bid is similar to the preceding one but focused on infill sites such
as underused garages, car parks and empty spaces within a number
of estates.

Schemes will only be brought forward where they support the
Councll’s objectives and show individual cost effectiveness and value
for money. The Council will look to use sltes in the east of the
borough to introduce market housing to the area while sites in the
west will be used to maximise affordable housing in support of the
Council's aims to meet the housing challenge in the borough. The aim
will be to utilise the funding to generate additional external investment
and income and this will be clearly set out in individual scheme

proposals.

A 2T



15.
15.1

15.2

16.
16.1

16.2

Page 52

Loft Conversions - £0.250m

The aim of the project is to provide overcrowded households living in
council property the opportunity to have their loft converted to provide
an additional bedroom. Such works would resolve the overcrowding
while allowing the family to remain in their current home and area
where they are already settled. This project will build on the
successful conversion programme of the last three years.

The programme will be focused in the North Tottenham area in
support of the Council’s priority to meet the Housing Challenge in
Haringey..

Livi h -
This project will support the refurbishment of five to eight properties

for supported living, each accommodating up to five people with either
learning difficulties or another social care need.

The properties require investment beyond that needed for Decent
Homes Standard. The delivery of such schemes enables significant
reductions in commissloning spend through improved Value for
Money care delivery and supports national and local policy objectives
for Social Care by providing greater independence and choice for
Adults with Disabilities.

Ad0



Page 53 Agenda Item 5

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

Councillors Adamou (Chair), Stennett, Erskine and Winskill

Co-opted Claire Andrews, HFOP

members
LC1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Cllr Mallett

LC2.

LC3.

LC4.

LCS.

Helena Kania

URGENT BUSINESS

Hornsey Park Surgery
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chair wished it to be noted that her daughter is a Social Worker for Haringey
Council.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Panel requested clarification on the relationship between the Panel and the main
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in particular with reference to what does and does
not need to be referred to the main Overview and Scrutiny Committee for approval.

The Panel noted the role of scrutiny in holding the Health and Wellbeing Board to
account, once this is a statutory body and asked for further information on how this will
work in practice.

The Terms of reference for the Panel were noted.

AGREED:

Clarification on what needs to go to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be
discussed amongst the Panel Chairs and the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny.

Senior Policy Officer would keep the Panel informed of developments and publications

on the relationship between Overview and Scrutiny and the Health and Wellbeing
Board.

WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE PANEL

The Panel asked that the an update on the Clinical Commissioning Group transition
be added to the January agenda.



Page 54

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

LC6.

LC7.

Noted that NCL have an integrated working strategy and that this should be looked at
with a view to assessing how this links to Haringey.

AGREED:

Senior Policy to look at NCL integrated working strategy with a view to this linking into
a piece of work undertaken by the Panel.

Senior Policy Officer to do some research on integrated care, including under-pinning
budgets.

CO-OPTEES

The Panel welcomed Claire Andrews, Haringey Forum for Older People, as a co-
optee on the Panel.

It was noted that the Haringey Forum for Older People and Age UK Haringey are due
to go into partnership in the near future.

AGREED:

A representative from Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community
Organisations (HAVCO) would also be invited to be a co-optee on the Panel.

CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS

Clir Vanier, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Services, presented the following P
points as an introduction to her portfolio area:

Adults has a net budget of £74.3 million.

Adults provides personalised services to residents over 18 years of age.

There is a statutory duty to work with vulnerable people in the borough.

Aims to provide good value for money through strong commissioning practices.
Challenges include:

o Poor health of some residents over 65 years of age which use the
majority of hospital beds with reference to unplanned hospital provision.
Increase in long term conditions.

Ageing population.

Rising cost of care.

Reducing the life expectancy gap.

o Adult safeguarding becoming a statutory duty.

= Achievements include:

o A good re-ablement service

o Two forty bed extra care schemes with an estimated saving of £0.5
million in the first year.

o Protheroe House is being re-designed to provide extra care housing.

o Telecare — looking to expand this further to assist in the management of
long term conditions.

o Warm and Healthy campaign.

O O O O



Page 55

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

o Two new supported living schemes for people with Learning Disabilities
— Campsbourne and Priory Road (coming soon to support respite and
emergency provision).

The Cabinet Member was asked about the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board
(sHWB) and the following information was given to the Panel:

The shadow Health and Wellbeing Board has produced the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment and Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plan is due to be agreed later this
month.

Governance of the Health and Wellbeing Board is still under discussion as
government regulations have not yet been published.

The current membership is 13 people and includes the Local Involvement
Network and the Chair of the Clinical Commissioning Group as well as one
other GP.

Examples of current work include early bookings for anti-natal care as this has
been flagged as an area where there are issues.

The sHWB ceases it's shadow form as of April 2013 when it becomes statutory.

There is discussion taking place as to whether the HWB will be a partnership
board or a sub-committee. Hoping that regulations clarify this.

The Panel raised concerns that only those who are on the sHWB know what
work is being undertaken and that decisions may therefore be being made
without any dialogue or input from any other stakeholder and the implications
for this once the sHWB takes on its statutory function without people knowing
how it took the form which it does or why.

The Panel asked for further information on its statutory role in scrutinising the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Panel asked for reassurance that the new HealthWatch budget would be at least
the circa £146k currently spent on the Local Involvement Network and whether the
budget for Patient Advice and Liaison service will come to Haringey when
HealthWatch takes over the advocacy role.

In response it was noted that In the current economic climate there is no guarantee
that any budget can be protected.

It was also noted that Adults is not, as yet, aware of the PALS funding.

The Panel noted that there needs to be transparency on all funding arrangements.

The Panel asked for reassurance that as well as improvements to online access to
services and information that improvements were also being made for those who may



Page 56

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

LCS.

not have access to the internet, or the skills to access the internet, for example some
older people.

The Panel were informed that improvements had also been made elsewhere, for

example the Integrated Access Team which is a single point of access for people
contacting Adult services.

AGREED:
The Senior Policy Officer would send information to the Panel on the relationship
between scrutiny and the Health and Wellbeing Board as and when this becomes
available.

A briefing on the sHWB work programme would be circulated to the Panel.

A briefing note on the funding of HealthWatch and the PALS funding transfer would be
provided to the Panel.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the minutes of the sHWB are published on the Haringey website to allow
transparency of work undertaken.

BUDGET MONITORING 2012/ 13

Katherine Heffernan, Head of Finance for Adults and Housing introduced the Budget
Monitoring report.

A correction to the report was noted — Para 5.3, third line from the bottom should say
‘commissioning’ rather than ‘decommissioning’.

It was noted that the current financial pressure is due to an increased demand for
services, particularly in older people services and mental health services.

There is also a large amount of pressure due to Continuing Healthcare where people
leave the care of the NHS and need adult services. Noted that the budgets do not
follow these cases.

Noted that whilst there is growing demand on services the budget is not growing.

There is uncertainty on the future of funding for social care with no decision currently
being made by the Government following the Dilnott Commission report.

Noted that health inequalities in the area also have an impact as people are becoming
ill earlier and this has an implication on services and therefore the budget.

Noted that the cost of caring for older people outside of hospital settings has a direct
impact on social services and whilst this action may contribute to the health deficit
reduction the costs are being shifted from the NHS onto social care.



Page 57

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

Noted that the Fair Access to Care services (FACs) criteria for Haringey has not
changed, and remains at the Critical/Substantial level. Some authorities are just
providing at a Critical level.

The Panel were reassured that there is ongoing and robust dialogue between health
and social care colleagues about the shifting of costs from NHS services onto social
care services, particularly around the continuing healthcare assessments.

Work is being undertaken to integrate commissioning by Section 75 and Section 256
arrangements.

(N.b Section 75, NHS Act 2006:

=  “Pooled funds - the ability for partners each to contribute agreed funds to a
single pot, to be spent on agreed projects for designated services

» Lead commissioning - the partners can agree to delegate commissioning of a
service to one lead organisation

» Integrated provision - the partners can join together their staff, resources, and
management structures to integrate the provision of a service from managerial
level to the front line” (DoH website)

Section 256

“PCTs can make payments (service revenue or capital contributions) to the
local authority to support specific additional local authority services. For
example, where older people require a greater level of care in the community.
This is a grant for additional local authority spend (a contribution to the other
partner’s costs for care delivery), not a transfer of health functions to the local
authority. The provision can be used to create joint budgets for joint and
integrated services.” (Audit Commission)).

The Panel were informed that Adults is being extremely tough in negotiations, both in
terms of multi-disciplinary assessments and also with regards to any cost shifting onto
social care services.

Noted that Adults and Health are also trying to work closer together to improve
services for the service user and to provide a seamless service.

There is a lot of pressure due to the rate of people coming out of hospital, and those
who are no longer being admitted who previously may would have and who need
social care services.

Noted that the service is due to put in a growth bid for the forthcoming budget round,
however there would be no guarantee in the current climate that this would be
approved.

It was noted that the service is trying to contain budget pressures as much as possible
internally, for example not recruiting to posts unless absolutely necessary.



Page 58

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

LC9.

Noted that Haringey receives funding as an outer London authority with inner London
needs.

The Panel asked that in future the budget report Cabinet Member introduction could
be deleted as there were concerns that it was party political and therefore goes
against the non-party political nature of scrutiny.

AGREED:

The Panel would write to support the case for greater funding for Haringey.

The Senior Policy Officer would ask the Head of Finance for future reports to be
edited to remove the Cabinet introduction.

LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICE - TRANSITION FROM WHITEHALL STREET

Beverley Tarka, Head of Learning Disabilities, gave an overview of the move from
Whitehall Street to Campsbourne. The following points were noted:

= The policy direction nationally is one towards enabling people to have more
choice and control over their lives.

= The Service feels that the move to Campsbourne encapsulates this policy
direction.

= Adults worked closely with Housing and identified an uneconomic void, where
the cost of renovating the property for a family was too high.

= Capital investment was approved for this property to be redeveloped using the
Community Care Grant and the Housing Revenue Account.

= Work was undertaken in a tight timescale of 6 months.

» Residents of Campsbourne were encouraged to chose their own colour
scheme for their new home.

= There are two care staff at Campsbourne at al times. These are being paid for
by the service users using personal budgets.

= Documents such as a Service Level Agreement and Protocol were created
specifically for this piece of work.

= Residents at Campsbourne have had post-placement reviews to assess how
they are getting on in their new home.

= An Independent Mencap Advocate has been commissioned to do a review with
the service users who are now residents of Campsbourne. Overall this review
found the residents to be very happy in their new home and enjoying an active
social life.



Page 59

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

One resident commented that she was unable to view Campsbourne before
moving in and that she would have liked to have done so. The Panel were
informed that this was due to health and safety issues. However, they are
considering this as a lesson learnt for any future project. It was also noted that
photos were taken and put up at Whitehall for residents to be able to see
pictures of where they would be moving to.

The unit cost at Whitehall Street was £1800 as opposed to £1200 per week at
Campsbourne.

Yvonne, next of kin for a resident of Campsbourne, made the following points:

There was a lot of consultation about the move from Whitehall, however there
was no choice as to whether or not they wanted Whitehall to close — this
decision was made by the Council.

The new home is closer to Yvonne and therefore more accessible for her to
visit.

Campsbourne has a more homely feel that Whitehall did.

Her relative now does her own shopping which she has never been able to do
before and has settled in much better than had been expected.

Yvonne feels that the staff at Campsbourne are wonderful and very caring.
Yvonne is very happy with the overall outcome.

The brother of a resident made the following points:

Felt the move was rushed

Would have preferred his sister on the ground floor but choice was not
available.

Very happy with the staff at Campsbourne.

His sister is happy being able to go out and into the community.

Edenvale (Care Providers for Campsbourne) made the following points:

Two members of staff who previously worked at Whitehall were able to secure
jobs with Edenvale). These staff Members have said that residents have
blossomed and become more assertive in their new home.

There are no set menus at Campsbourne — residents can chose what they
want to eat.

Residents are going out more, for example visits to the local pub, and they are
able to do this when they chose to.

Residents able to enjoy every day activities which most people take for
granted, for example doing their own clothes shopping and their own food
shopping.

The following points were made in response to questions by the panel:

There is now just one in-house residential provision which is council owned.
This is for people who have very high support needs.



Page 60

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

LC10.

The Lowry and the Priory are being developed along the same model as
Campsbourne.

It was the families who chose Edenvale rather that Adult services. This was
done by the families interviewing providers. Before this was done, each
potential provider was fully audited by Adults, this included safeguarding.

The Priory will be for people who have chosen Council respite.

As a direction of travel Adults hopes to develop more services along these
lines.

All residents are registered with a local GP.

For future developments Adults would ensure that residents were able to meet
contractors a lot earlier to discuss their needs. They would also drive people
around the area so that they have more of a feel for the neighbourhood that
they will be moving into.

Campsbourne is environmentally safe and has a burglar alarm as well as
Telecare facilities.

Both announced and unannounced safeguarding visits have taken place.
There have been no safeguarding issues reported to date.

Housing Officers have met with the residents.

Residents have not met with Safer Neighbourhood Teams.

The Panel asked that the Independent Mencap Advocacy review report be circulated
to the Panel.

The Panel thanked the representatives for attending and congratulated them on the
service change.

AGREED

Residents of Campsbourne to be introduced to their local Safer Neighbourhood Team.

The Independent Mencap Advocacy report to be circulated to the Panel.

CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP UPDATE

Sarah Price, Accountable Officer, Haringey Clinical Commissioning Group presented
the following points:

She will be working closely with Dr Helen Pelendrides (Chair of the Haringey
Clinical Commissioning Group) through the authorisation process.

At present the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has a delegated
responsibility and can therefore make decisions.

The CCG won't be fully accountable until April 2013.

There is lost of change coming for the CCG over the next 6 months to prepare
them for full authorisation.



Page 61

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

This is a time of risk, however it has been planned for which includes planning
to mitigate risks.

The CCG is financially challenged, with a significant overspend.

The CCG is changing the way that services are provided, moving towards a
more integrated approach and one which wraps around families.

Working closely with other boroughs and organisations to improve services and
value for money. There are potentially lots of alliances which the Haringey
CCG can benefit from.

In response to questions from the Panel the following points were made:

Referral management and demand management are two key challenges.
Budgets are not controlled by the Clusters, they are centrally controlled.

The Cluster has been able to financially risk share by pooling a top-slice of
budgets. for example the 2% top slice has been used to transform services.

Haringey has previously paid less into this top-slice due to it's financial
pressures.

The CCG are looking at ‘risk pool’ options across London. This would enable
CCG'’s to access any surplus which they wouldn’t have otherwise been able to.

It is not necessarily better to have an under-spend rather than an overspend as
each area starts from zero every year.

The CCG is unable to pool budgets with the Council until April 2013 as they are
not a statutory body until then.

The direction of travel in Haringey is towards greater integration.

Discussion between the CCG and senior Managers in Adult Services is taking
place.

The NCL Primary Care Strategy aims to improve services across the board.
However there is a need to develop a Haringey Primary Care Strategy from the
NCL one.

Haringey has a different GP profile to the rest of the NCL cluster in that it has a
high number of salaried GPs.

The CCG is hoping to appoint a Medical Director and a Director of Quality
soon.

Allocation of Public Health funding does not directly link to the previous spend
of an area on Public Health. Allocations are currently being revised and so
figures may change over the next couple of months.



Page 62

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

LC11.

LC12.

LC13.

Sarah was welcomed to her new role in Haringey by the Panel and thanked for
attending so early in the role.

The Panel wished for their thanks to be passed on to Andrew Williams, outgoing
Borough Director/Acting Accountable Officer for his help and support during his time in
Haringey.

AGREED:

That the Senior Policy Officer to look into what disease areas are likely to cause the
highest budget pressures.

AREA COMMITTEE CHAIRS FEEDBACK
None received.
FUTURE MEETINGS

10" December, 2012
10" January, 2012
2" April, 2013

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

Concern was raised with regards to the future of Hornsey Park Surgery.

Hornsey Park Surgery is not currently expected to meet Care Quality Commission
standards which come into force next year. Options are being explored to ensure that
the surgery does meet standards.

Concerns have been raised that the surgery will be forced to move out of it’'s current
catchment area and further to the West of the borough due to uncertainly of the
current properties lease and opportunities for improving the current or nearby surgery.

The panel raised concerns that:
= any move to Hornsey would make it very difficult for existing patients to travel
as although it is geographically close, it would be two bus journeys
= a move would further exacerbated health inequalities in the borough.

It was noted that whilst Doctor continuity is important, the quality of provision was also
important and this would need to be balanced when considering the premises for the

surgery.
AGREED:

Sarah Price, Accountable Officer, Haringey CCG would speak to North Central
London NHS to get an update on the situation for the Panel.



Page 63

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012

Cllr Gina Adamou

Chair



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

Councillor Adamou (Chair), Mallett, Stennett, Erskine and WinskKill

’ Helena Kania (LINk), Pam Moffatt (HFOP, for Claire Andrews)
Co-Optees
LC14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Claire Andrews (HFOP)
LC15. URGENT BUSINESS
None received
LC16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None received
LC17. BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY MENTAL HEALTH TRUST

The Panel received a presentation from the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental
Health Trust.

Key points noted:

e Sincere apologies for the poor communication regarding Downhills Ward.

e The Trust is committed to learn from mistakes made and is reviewing their

communications policy.

e ‘Changing for Good’ is an on-going initiative, which the MHT has had an on-

going dialogue with Overview and Scrutiny about.

e http://www.beh-mht.nhs.uk/changing-for-good.htm

e Beds don’t necessarily equate to better care.

e Patients spending too long on Wards isn’t always good for them and can make

them go downhill again.

e Some Wards across the MHT have consistently got empty beds.

e There is therefore a point where there is a need to look at consolidation. It was

felt that this was the point reached in relation to Downhills Ward.

¢ Downhills Ward has consistently had the poorest quality environment, a point

which has also been raised by the Care Quality Commission.

e Better stock will be available once St Ann’s is redeveloped. However this is 2

Y2 years away.



Page 66

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

e Options currently being considered are for the interim period in the lead up to
the site redevelopment. These options are:

o Looking at whether we can adapt the wards at St Ann’s to allow mixed
sex use — this would be very difficult and very expensive, given the
wards will be replaced by 2015

o Moving the assessment ward to Chase Farm and having separate male
and female treatment wards at St Ann's in the interim — this would ease
the travel difficulties for carers and other visitors of longer stay patients
as only assessment patients would be affected

o Combining assessment and treatment beds on each of the remaining
male and female wards — the preferred option

o We are also looking at how we could provide additional support for
carers of patients if temporarily accommodated at Chase Farm, e.g. a

free regular shuttle bus between St Ann’s and Chase Farm

In response to questions from the Panel and other attendees the following points were

noted:

e The announced closure of Downhills Ward in September was felt to be an
operational and service decision as it was part of wider discussions on the
service model and was therefore taken by the Crisis and Emergency Line.

e However, the Communication Policy was not followed in this case.

e There are clinical safety considerations e.g. having to correct ratio of staff to
patients — as capacity reduces any staff absence can have a bigger impact and
therefore bigger clinical concerns.

e |tis estimated that changes would impact approximately 10 patients per month.

e 22 years is a realistic time frame for the redevelopment of St Ann’s.

e There was some confusion on the number of patients on Downhills Ward as of
the date of the meeting.

e There are no new admissions to Downhills Ward. Any additional beds used
where due to moving people around as opposed to admitting.

e It would not be cost effective to keep Downhills Ward open for new admissions
during the consultation as there were too many empty beds across the MHT.

e The LINk raised concerns that procedures had not been followed and

questioned reassurances that the situation would not occur again.



Page 67

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

The Recovery House programme was fully consulted on, the closure of
Downhills Ward was based on this programme. However, MHT acknowledged
that they had forgotten to remind people of this.

At the time of the Recovery House programme consultation it was agreed that
beds would be kept until Recovery Houses were at full capacity, this point had
now been reached.

The Communication Policy now states that any decision to close a Ward should
go to the MHT Board.

The MHT can never say 100% that every Haringey resident will be treated in
Haringey as this is not practical due to fluctuations in need and the flow across
the whole of the Trust and the three Boroughs covered.

Concerns were raised that the mental health needs of residents in some of the
most deprived areas would not be met during the redevelopment and that those
with mental health needs, women, families of those with mental health needs
and those in deprived areas would be disadvantaged.

Wards had previously been be both treatment and assessment but splitting
them helps to manage the pathway better. The MHT now felt that Clinicians
had found a way in which both could be done on one Ward but keeping
assessment and treatment elements very separate in order to get the best

results.

AGREED:

That the Communications Policy would come to a future meeting of the Adults
and Health Scrutiny Panel for consideration and to reassure the Panel that it
would not fail in future.

That the Panel would receive an update in the New Year on the overall strategy

and the current and future position with regards to the position.

That the Panel would receive information on how the long term change away
inpatient centred treatment and to home and community based models is
progressing, with special emphasis on how the new ways of working are being
implemented form the point of view of clients, carers and mental health groups

at a Panel meeting in the New Year.



Page 68

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

LC18. MENTAL HEALTH SUPPORT ASSOCIATION

The Panel heard from Anne Clancy, the mother of a current patient on Downhills Ward

and also received an email submission. Points made included:

The Home Treatment Team is over whelmed and on its knees.

There is no continuity.

Beds have always been full over the past ten years.

Mrs Clancy’s daughter has experienced times when the Ward has been over
flowing and she has had to go and sleep somewhere else. Places have
included a geriatric ward and Barnet General hospital. This has caused a
relapse when she has been on the cusp of recovery.

Feels it is counter-productive to take people out of their communities.

When it was announced that Downhills Ward would close there were 9 patients
on the Ward (including her daughter).

At this time there was no mention of the options which had been outlined earlier
by the MHT.

In August Mrs Clancy had been told that Downhills Ward would not be closing.
The distress and trauma inflicted upon patients on the Ward was felt to be
outrageous.

Asked for reassurance that options mentioned will be monitored to ensure they
are implemented. The Chair of the Panel informed Mrs Clancy that the Panel

would be monitoring.

The Panel heard from the Haringey User Network that:

There is poor satisfaction amongst service users of the Home Treatment
Teams.

That there are 8 beds in the Haringey Recovery House and 4 each in Barnet
and Enfield.

There were examples of health professionals calling to admit people to
Recovery Houses but being told there was no space and therefore having to
treat them in the community.

Service Users want a Home Treatment Team service which is working, which it
is not felt to be at present.

It is not the time to be closing beds.



Page 69

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

With regards to bed numbers at St Ann’'s — Haringey Ward has 12 beds,
Finsbury Ward has 18 beds and Downhills Ward has 18 beds.
Feeling that no answers are providing by the MHT and very little notice given to

service users/patients, their carers and families.

The Panel heard from Ms. Campbell, patients mother, who expressed that she was

still in shock what had happened with the announced closure and was also still very

concerned about her daughter being moved at a time that she is making progress.

The Panel heard from MIND in Haringey that:

It was good that more people are being treated at home, but there are flaws in
the system for example, people find it difficult to contact Home Treatment
Teams.

Pets are very important to people and patients at St Ann’s are currently able to
pop home to check on their pets, if patients were moved further away this
would not be possible.

Advocacy provision would be much more difficult should patients be moved out
of St Ann’s to a location further away/harder to reach.

People would prefer to be more local to their homes and communities that to

have facilities such as an ensuite.

In response to the points raised above the Panel heard from Maria Kane, CE, BEH

MHT who made the following points:

The MHT recognises the impact on staff, service users and families.

There are mystery shoppers looking at Home Treatment Teams on an ongoing
basis as there has been some poor feedback. However it should be noted that
this is not all teams.

Maria requested that any issues from people with concerned are directed to her
with specifics so that she can look into them properly.

Future communications will take place differently. There are safeguards within
the new communications policy to ensure that the issues regarding Downhills
Ward communication are not repeated.

3 staff workshops have taken place alongside the re-drafting of the
communications policy and have included communications, change

management and involvement.



Page 70

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

A new staff member has joined the Communications Team to support the work.
Changes are part of a programme and are not a ‘knee jerk’ cut.

Current patients on Downhills Ward will not be moved.

LC19. NEXT STEPS

The Mental Health Support Association requested more information on the
financial background to reassure service users, carers and families that
changes are based on strategy rather than cost savings.

Noted that there was a need for transparency with changes, and that MHT
Board papers are available to the public via the MHT website.

A decision on options would be needed sooner rather than later and any work
to be done would be needed to be done over the next month.

The Panel asked that Downhills Ward remain open to new patients whilst
discussions on proposed options take place. It was noted that this was
technically possible but it would mean that some patients would then be in the
position where they were faced with being moved at a later date after being

admitted to Downhills Ward. There are also financial implications to consider.

AGREED:

That a working group would be set up with a view to making recommendations
on options.

That this working group would meet over the next month and would complete
its work within the month.

That Maria Kane, CE, BEH MHT would write to the Panel within 48 hrs to

address issues raised during the meeting.

LC20. MINUTES

Deferred

LC21. FUTURE MEETINGS

10" December, 18:30
10" January, 2013, 18:30
2" April 2013, 18:30



Page 71

MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL
TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2012

LC22. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None

Clir George Meehan

Chair



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73 Agenda ltem 6
X

=

Haringey

Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel

Forward Programme

N.b. All meetings are 6.30pm to 9.30pm.

Date Meeting Item and lead officers
10/12/12 Panel Meeting Dedicated Budget Scrutiny meeting
Civic Centre
Room 2
10/01/13 Panel Meeting 1. Whittington Health Foundation
Civic Centre Application update
Canteen Fiona Smith, Director, Planning and
Programme

2. Haringey Children’s Service report
Dee Hackett, Director of Operations —
Women, Children and Families

3. CCG Update
Sarah Price, Accountable Officer, Dr
Helen Pelendrides, Chair, Haringey CCG

4. Health and Wellbeing Board update
Jeanelle de Gruchy, Director of Public
Health

5. BEH MHT Communication Policy — BEH
Mental Health Trust

6. Home Treatment Teams and Recovery
Houses — BEH MHT

7. Project work (Integration briefing

paper)
02/04/13 Panel Meeting 1. Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery
Civic Centre Plan
Room 1 Jeanelle de Gruchy, Director of Public
Health

2. Clinical Commissioning Group update
Sarah Price, Accountable Officer, Dr
Helen Pelendrides, Chair, Haringey CCG




Page 74

X

=

Haringey

3. Development of Healthwatch Haringey

4. Perinatal mental health services,
CAMHS and early years health
provision
Sam Page, AD, Whittington Health

5. Update on the introduction of personal
budgets
Adults Service

6. JHOSC Terms of Reference

7. Project work

Panel Projects

Mental Health Dependent on what is being done elsewhere
e.g. HWB
Mental health recovery/rehabilitation/patient
experience/integrated pathways
Contact: Nicole Klynman, AD Public Health

Alcohol Contact: Marion Morris, Drug and Alcohol
Strategy Manager

Joint working and integration Suggestion by Whittington Health

between health and social care Topic to possibly be around re-ablement/East
Haringey pilot/GP network/CCG clusters.
Contact: Carol Gillen, Director of Operations.
N.B. Carol is due to get back to me when she
has had a further think on best area for
scrutiny to add value. May be more timely to
look at in the new year.

Transformation agenda and Information and advice, service mapping
prevention Contact: Adults services

Health Visitors To be referred to the Children and Young
People’s Panel.




	Agenda
	4 Draft Medium Term Financial plan
	DRAFT MTFP REPORT
	DRAFT MTFP_APPENDIX

	5 Minutes
	13th November 2013

	6 Panel Forward Plan

